
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 
 

6:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on 
by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item 
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.  
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the August 16, 2022, Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21422-21424, Batch # 2; 
Checks Numbered 21425-21431 and Batch # 3; Checks Numbered 21434-21473, Checks 
Numbered 21432 and 21433 have been voided). 

c. Pay Request #1 BV Construction – WHPS/North Memorial Garage. 
d. Approval of a Solicitor Application for Curbside Waste (New Waste Hauler). 
e. Approval of Additional Election Judges for the 2022 General Election. 

 
5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  

 
6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
7. Russel Gilberg (Applicant) and David Vandeneinde (Owner) requests that the City consider the 

following action for the property located at 840 Wild Oak Trail, Independence, MN (PID No. 27-118-
24-33-0003): 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-01 – Considering approval of a conditional use permit to 

allow a ground mounted solar array on the subject property.   
 

8. John Peterson (Applicant) and Jean P & A Sterner Etal (Owner) requests that the City consider the 
following action for the properties generally located at 8910 US Hwy 12, Independence, MN (PID 
No’s. 07-118-24-41-0003 and 07-118-24-42-0004): 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-02 – Considering approval of a minor subdivision to 

allow a lot line rearrangement which would adjust the line that separates the two 
properties.   
 

9. Steve Bohl (Applicant) and Clifford L Otten Trust (Owner) request that the City consider the 
following actions for the properties generally located at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive, 
Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009 and 24-118-24-11-0012): 
 



 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-03 – Considering approval of a comprehensive plan 
amendment to allow the subject property to be re-guided to the RR-Rural Residential 
zoning district. 
 

b. ORDINANCE 2022-05: Considering rezoning of the subject property from AG-
Agriculture to RR-Rural Residential. 
 

c. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-04 – Considering approval of a preliminary plat for the 
proposed subdivision of the property into 28 single-family lots with a minimum lot size 
of 1 acre. 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 

11. Adjourn. 



 

City of Independence  1 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2022, 6:30 PM 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL	TO	ORDER.	

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council 
was called to order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m.  

 
2. PLEDGE	OF	ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  3.  ROLL	CALL 
 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting 
ABSENT: Betts 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, City Admin Assistant Simon, and Chief 

Kroells 
VISITORS: See Sign-in Sheet.  

 
 

4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Workshop Minutes from the July 27, 2022, City Council 
Workshop. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the August 2, 2022, Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21388-21421). 
d. Second Quarter Financial Report (For Information Only) 
 

 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: 
Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. None. 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED.  

 
5. SET	AGENDA	–	ANYONE	NOT	ON	THE	AGENDA	CAN	BE	PLACED	UNDER	OPEN/MISC.	

	
	 	

6. REPORTS	OF	BOARDS	AND	COMMITTEES	BY	COUNCIL	AND	STAFF	
 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• visiting the Otten property 



 

City of Independence  2 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

• N2U parties  
 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 
• N2U (5) 
• Aug 6 Tour de Tonka 
• Police Commission Meeting  

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

• N2U 
• Tour de Tonka 
• Aug 3 Fire District Meeting 
• MP Historical Society – Pie Social 
• Bruce Anderson funeral  

 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 

• N2U (5) 
• Bruce Anderson funeral 
• MP Historical Society – Pie Social 
• Election Day 
• Police Commission meeting 
• Chamber of Commerce 
• Kitty Crosby’s Funeral 
• Policy Committee meeting LMC  

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• none 
 
 

7. West Hennepin Public Safety – Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the July 2022 Activity 
Report. 

 
Chief Kroells described the report: For the July 2022 Activity Report showing 2,342 total 
Incidence Complaints– 297 in Independence and 127 in Maple Plain. 
 
See full report for more details. 
 
Thank you, Officer Cody Thompson, for setting up the 14 Night 2 Unite parties.   
8 in Independence- attending 4 himself. 
 
Officer John Howes was promoted to Sergeant effective Aug 1st, 2022, as noted in our fall 
newsletter. 
 
Administrative Assistant resigned for family reasons; new Admin Assistant was hired and 
began August 8th.  
 
He had also worked Tour de Tonka in the rain which temporarily impacted traffic signals and 
officers then needed to direct traffic in the rain. 
 
Hwy 12 is reopening soon – Construction has been going well having good weather; curb work 
is happening right now on Hwy 12 roundabout. Hwy 12 east and west reopening by Sept 15.  



 

City of Independence  3 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

Cty Rd 92 will not be reopened while they finish the bridge deck work connecting North and 
South 92. Completed project to end as of Oct. 2022.  

 
 
8. Approval of MnDOT Master Partnership Contract for the Highway 12 Light Maintenance. 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0816-01 – Considering approval of the Master Partnership 

Agreement. 
 
Kaltsas – We negotiated a contract with them 8 years ago when they wanted to do LED lights along 
the Hwy. We don’t have the equipment to maintain those lights. We entered in the contract and now 
we are renewing it. It is a 5-year contract through 2027. Just applies to us and the lighting systems 
we have. We will be taking on a few more lights with the new projects going on the roads.  
 
Motion by Grotting, second by Spencer to approve Resolution No. 22-0816-01 as 
written. Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: 
Betts. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED.  
  

 
9. Steve Bohl (Applicant) and Clifford L Otten Trust (Owner) request that the City consider the 

following actions for the properties generally located at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive, 
Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009 and 24-118-24-11-
0012): 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0816-02 – Considering approval of a comprehensive plan 

amendment to allow the subject property to be re-guided to the RR-Rural Residential 
zoning district. 

b. ORDINANCE 2022-05: Considering rezoning of the subject property from AG-
Agriculture to RR-Rural Residential. 

c. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0816-03 – Considering approval of a preliminary plat for the 
proposed subdivision of the property into 28 single-family lots with a minimum lot size 
of 1 acre. 

  
Kaltsas – The City would have other items that would need to come back to the city and the 
final plat upon approval. New and additional information has been received since the planning 
commission meeting. The larger portion of the property 46 acres overall. Guided as Rural 
Residential in the shoreland overlay district. Within the RR zoning district, they would be able 
to utilize the shoreland overlay district. Sewered or unsewered lots is allowed. 1 acre in overall 
size in shoreland overlay allowed. Shoreland extends up to 1000 feet which would include this 
property. This was made 20 years ago that took shoreland ordinance and made an interpretation 
of anything within 1000 feet can be subdivided into 1 acre lots. Guided as RR in the Comp 
Plan. 1unit/5 acres. 2030 Comp Plan is RR, 2040 Comp Plan is RR. Asking for RR amendment 
to bring the whole property into the MUSA (sewered) area. Amendment to the Quad City 
agreement would be needed as well with this. The sewer system would be through Medina. 
MetCouncil is a silent partner in this agreement. Met Council requires 3 units per acre. City has 
had a number of people approach the city about this property and options. 3 years ago it was to 
meet the MetCouncil at 3 units per acre for over 100 units on this property. At the time the 
Comp Plan needed to be approved before going through with this. The City would not approve 
something with this density. The 28-unit proposal would have sanitary sewer, onsite wells, and 
1-acre parcels. There are 2 sewer connections stubbed in on this property: a primary house and 
secondary house. This would expand sewer for 26 additional units. Planning Commission 
recommended approval to City Council with some changes.  



 

City of Independence  4 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

We look at how it would fit into the City and what the applicant needs to change. There is a 
much more detailed view of this as it passes through PC. Key considerations discussed by PC 
are:  
 
* There is an existing ravine system on the northern third and goes down to Lake Independence. 
The desire for the City to protect and regulate that ravine. No development to the North towards 
the lakeshore in order to protect the ravine. When we have looked at this plan historically, there 
would be a disturbance to the ravine system. Lots numbered 8, 9, 10, and 5, 6, 7. City 
recommends an easement or conservation or drainage/utility over that ravine, so it was 
protected if this were to move forward.  
 
Then we would establish tree preservation since there isn’t anything in the ordinance currently 
regarding this. Area of disturbance would be minimal. The contours are shown in the existing 
grading. Stormwater for this site would be handled with 2 wet ponds and 2 dry basins SE & 
centrally located, through either ditch or pipe brought back into development in the ponds. If 
there are new roads and infrastructure and a disturbance of 1 acre or greater, this would be 
subject to water and quality controls. Lot 2 ravine that comes through to the lift station there 
could be a basin to catch runoff from lots 1-5 specifically.  Access onto Perkinsville and South 
Lakeshore and a cul-de-sac in the middle. Bituminous roads with curb and gutter and standard 
city road width. Application plans for preserving existing vegetation, historically it was a 
nursery. Landscape plan was provided, and the City asked for more detail that we will work on 
if it moves forward, mostly preserving along outlot A South Lake Shore Dr and wraparound out 
lot along Perkinsville Dr. 
 
At one point the City and PC had considered creating a new zoning. Given the uniqueness of 
this property (broad contained shoreland, sewer running on 2 sides of the property, and is on the 
lakeshore), the City thinks there’s an opportunity to develop an ordinance amendment to allow 
a new Planned Unit Developments (PUD) zoning within the City’s Rural Residential (RR) 
zoning. That would be a tool available to others who meet these minimum standards of 40 acre 
minimum with sewer availability. A property on the north side of Independence could 
eventually qualify at some point if sewer was approved. (48) It would be applicable to 
developments that are within an area of the lake. The City provided some draft language that 
would include this development requirements. Riparian connectivity and sewer availability.  
 
40-acre minimum with sewer no sewer approval on the northside. Provisions within ordinance 
structure is suggested... draft language for cluster development specific for riparian connectivity 
and sewer availability. 
 
Pg 88 of council packet shows lot standards: 
Minimum lot size:   1 acre (43,560 SF)  
Minimum lot width:   100 feet at right of way line  
Front yard setback:   35 feet from right of way line  
Side yard setback:   15 feet  
Corner yard setback:  35 feet  
Rear yard setback:   40 feet  
Shoreland setback:   100 feet  
Setback from lake:   100 feet from ordinary high mark  
Setback from wetland:  10 ten feet from the outside edge of the required wetland buffer 
 



 

City of Independence  5 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

The standards we would adopt would need to address Accessory Structure. Any lot currently 
allows 1850 sq.ft., but the layout of this development should be limited to 1,000 sq.ft. which 
would be combined attached and detached accessory structures. Applicant would include this 
limitation within the HOA covenants. (Pergola, outdoor kitchens, fireplaces, etc.). 
Of Outlots ABCDF, there is a community area in Outlot D with pergola structure, fireplace, 
walking path, firepit. It’d be HOA maintained and owned, similar to other subdivisions.  
Park Dedication – sidewalk or trail should be considered, but it wasn’t specified where or how. 
2 options: Trail could run along South Lake Shore from the new proposed road to the corner of 
Perkinsville and potentially extending it Perkinsville or routing it through the development as 
well and back out to Perkinsville and down to the lake- an internal sidewalk. The City doesn’t 
currently maintain sidewalks and has limited trail maintenance. Not that we can’t or shouldn’t 
do that but what does it connect to. Perkinsville is busy now, so a trail or sidewalk may be a 
good idea to pull pedestrian traffic off that. Thinking of where it could connect – a trail east and 
north into Baker Park – requiring County’s need to participate. Trail Asking for council to 
provide direction on a trail/sidewalk.  
 
Mayor Johnson said we did get permission to push through at the intersection of Perkinsville 
into the park at the intersection of 19 & that corner, but we never secured the ROW. 
 
PC had a lot of discussion on Outlot E trail down to a common dock. PC recommended 
approval but no access for development on that outlot. New plans show it down through the 
wooded area onto Outlot F to allow a shared pontoon boat owned by the association. Outlot E 
would no longer be proposed to be used for any public purpose. The Applicant could speak 
more, and they put more detail in their narrative. Input from CC on Outlot F is needed. Outlot E 
could be absorbed or removed from the proposal. The engineer’s comments were reviewed with 
Applicant. If Council made a recommendation, it would still be reviewed by the DNR, Pioneer 
Sarah Creek, MetCouncil, Comp Plan approval, Quad City, preliminary grading, etc. would 
need to approve this development as well.  
 
Mayor Johnson asked Mr. Bohl if everything sounded correct from Kaltsas. Bohl said yes.  
Johnson said that this is not a public hearing tonight. 
  
Spencer said many years ago we did a watershed experiment on a ravine, the study thought that 
positioning runoff ponds would not cause heavy flow. Pond #1 is positioned well to slow the 
flow, need to make sure it is sized appropriately. Pond #3 feeds into Baker Park to reduce flow. 
Is there a pond #2? Kaltsas said No. Spencer said that it does have increased flow in heavy flow 
so maybe have some runoff into another Outlot. Many people think that these homes will 
negatively affect Lake Independence, but this is an opportunity to improve the runoff with the 
new development where we couldn’t have the current owner do this. Is the HOA responsible for 
the playground, etc.? Kaltsas said, yes, it is maintained by the HOA. The City has the ability to 
direct. PC didn’t identify the need outside of the sidewalk trail for pedestrians. Discussions 
previously, MP park two blocks away on Budd St to duplicate something here. There would 
either be cash or park dedication. Spencer- They need some sort of deck, walk, bridge, etc. over 
the ravine. Is something similar being proposed for Outlots 8 and 9 to allow for across the 
ravine? Kaltsas said Outlots 8 & 9 already have that, so you’re really talking about deck or walk 
to get one through the ravine. 8 & 9. 
 
Johnson – Something we talked about previously is the increasing cost to the people on the 
sewer system. Have we any idea what this impact would be?  



 

City of Independence  6 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

Kaltsas said we wouldn’t be adding a lift station, just rebuilding the existing one long-term 
beneficial to our system. Our lift station is what takes maintenance, and we have 34 lift stations 
in the city. It will have minimal impact. It will reduce overall sewer bill or project lower costs 
allowing lower projection increases. Upgraded infrastructures with more sharing it. 
Johnson – Would all the water go towards the North and East or would there still be water 
heading to the West?  
Kaltsas – The majority of this site is going now to the North and East. The way it would be 
graded and lots set up, the front yards along the streets and new impervious of the streets would 
route to the ponds. Back yards of lakeshore lots would run towards current infrastructure.  
Spencer – We have all the work done on this piece 15 -20 years ago. It will be an improvement 
in the runoff into Lake Independence. It might be a rain garden to help fast flows and it looks 
like those were incorporated into the plan.  
McCoy – There looks like there will be a lot of dirt moved on the East side. What grade will 
that be? 
Kaltsas – A 4 on backside of outlot C. in 2-ft increments 
McCoy – Is that cutting 8ft of dirt out of there?  
Engineer – Coming down on a 4 to 1 on the east side and 8-9ft on some sides.  
McCoy – Are you taking all the rolling hills out of there? 
Engineer – It’s still sloping to the North and flattening it out.  
Johnson asked about access to the lake. Kaltsas said new access to the lake is creating new 
outlot F (lake access) to the East of existing home that is surrounded. Bituminous trail that goes 
down and a dock that goes out for a community pontoon owned by the HOA, single pontoon 
with dock slip, usable to the residents of the HOA.  
Spencer –The City has no authority to regulate water levels. That’s DNR.  
Kaltsas – Yes. 
Grotting – Does Outlot E factor into their development plans? 
Kaltsas – It doesn’t help or hurt. If Outlot E would become something, we would need to do an 
easement recorded with the City to the lift station.  
Grotting – Is there any benefit to the City to have access all the way to the lake? 
Kaltsas – No.  
McCoy – I would like to see Outlot E go away if they’re going to authorize the trail for Outlot F 
for future residents.   
Kaltsas- I think we would restrict that. Maybe the developer would remove it. We want our lift 
station to be protected.  I don’t know of a public purpose for it.   
Grotting – Could the developer sell it to Lot 3?  
Kaltsas – No. There’s not enough shoreline. Our position is that the City is not interested in use 
of a dock.  If this is the plat and we’re not interested in the use of a dock, then the developer 
would have to come up with a restricted use- gets dedicated to the City, surrounding property 
owners/ HOA. etc. We should address that in the final plat. 
Johnson – I have a concern with it being a community use thing. People driving down Maple St 
which is just a driveway with a park being just next door.  If it’s just a hiking trail but to drive 
people down in cars> 
Spencer – Some are challenging, and some are not problematic. We can’t really restrict that 
with our ability. I am a little concerned with it too.  They could make use of the park without 
going too far. It may start out ok and get out of control down the road. We have no way of 
enforcing the use of the dock, etc. I’d need to be convinced that the HOA could regulate it 
internally. 
Kaltsas – Maple St is a private driveway and a shared private driveway where the city has an 
easement over the top of that. 



 

City of Independence  7 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

Grotting – Can you address our relationship with the MetCouncil? If we have a development 
hook up to the sewer, we are looking at a high-density agreement. I love this density, but how 
do we get around the 3:1? 
Kaltsas – We looked at the math with our Comp Plan 2.5 years ago, saying to the MetCouncil, 
“We don’t want you to include anything that’s ever been sewered historically.” (Bailout/Grant) 
We’d asked them not to penalize City for things out of our control. We’ve tried to save lots on 
Lindgren Ln but eventually had to sewer those failed lots. We would have to offset this density 
of .75 per acre net density in order to satisfy MetCouncil. We got them to agree to not include 
anything historically sewered, but this would be counted. 2040 Plan does not show much 
impact with this development. This doesn’t present as much of a challenge. The impact is not 
even a decimal point moving forward.  
Grotting – Say it enough times, and pretty soon it’s a larger can that we’re kicking into a 
potential lopsided municipality. 
Johnson – Is our area south of Perkinsville still in MetCouncil’s plan for RR? 
Kaltsas – Yes. We are down to 3.5. The area South of MP proposing to sewer (Urban 
Residential), we are down in the 2.7 units/acre. This doesn’t meet any of their policies, but now 
moving forward it is 3.0 units/acre (similar that is near Orono Schools) by comparison. For us 
to sewer large lots is not ideal when trying to meet MetCouncil’s requirements.  
Johnson – Planning Commission is to be meeting right now. What would happen if we delayed 
this to the next Council meeting when we have all night? 
Kaltsas – It is up to Council if they want to table it. 
Spencer – Would a couple weeks delay anything? 
Kaltsas – I suggest doing it all at the same time. It all ties together.  
Johnson said we need more time.  
Spencer – Item number 3 warrants a little more discussion. So if we should do all at the same 
time, I’m in favor of that.  
 
Motioned by Spencer, seconded by McCoy to table the requests as written for 2236 South 
Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009 and 
24-118-24-11-0012). Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: 
Betts. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

 
5. Open/Misc. 
 
Kaltsas – Is there anything to bring back?  
Spencer – Community access point outlot discussion. Consideration for pond #2. If we can’t 
connect a trail to Baker Park, get an easement to get the connecting trail along Perkinsville to 
Baker Park Trail system to put it in down the road.  
Grotting – Can we use park dedication fees more liberally to push it through for a trail? 
Spencer- A couple other owners would need to be included.  
Johnson – Three Rivers Park District still has the layout on where we would access through to 
Baker Park. Are we sure MetCouncil will approve this?  
Kaltsas – No, we should get their information soon. Our approval is subject to MetCouncil’s 
approval. 
 

 
 

 
 



 

City of Independence  8 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm August 16, 2022 

 
6. Adjourn. 

 
Motion carried by Spencer, seconded by Grotting to adjourn at 8:08pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Linda Johnson / Recording Secretary 

 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
WHPS/North Memorial Garage - Pay Request #1 

 
To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, Administrator 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022 

 
Summary: 
The City has received the first pay request from BV Construction for the WHPS/North Memorial Garage 
Project.  The request has been reviewed and aligns with materials and work completed to date.  Staff has 
reviewed the requested payment and found it to be in line with anticipated and budgeted project costs. 
 
 
City Council Direction: 
Council is being asked to consider approval of the pay requests as recommended. 

 

Attachments: Pay Request #1 
  
 







 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
Approval of Election Judges for the 2022 Primary and General Elections 

 
To: City Council  

From: Amber Simon 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022 

 
 
Discussion: 
The City Council is required to appoint election judges for the upcoming primary and general 
elections to be held in August and November 2022.  Staff has prepared a list of election judges 
for consideration by the City Council. The following election judges can be considered for 
appointment by the City Council: 
 

• Charlie Hayes 
• Marilyn Hamilton 
• Darcy Ciatti 
• Lori McNamara 
• Marvin Johnson 
• Lynette Boyd Timpe 
• Chris Lyrek 
• Martha McCabe 
• Damon Kocina 
• Susan Ritts 
• Chris Burr 
• JP Story 
• Julie Larson 
• James Schmitt 
• Carol Neyens 
• Kim Klancke 

 
 
Additional election judges available: 
 

• Michelle Hammer 
• Allison Hirschberg 



 Page 2 

 

• Sarah Baker 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the City Council approve appointing the additional listed election judges. 
 

 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit to 

Construct a Ground Mounted Solar System on the  
Property located at 840 Wild Oak Trail 

 
To: Planning Commission 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: August 16, 2022 

Applicant: Russel Gilberg 

Property Owner: David Vandeneinde 

Location: 840 Wild Oak Trail  

 

Request: 
Russel Gilberg (Applicant) and David Vandeneinde (Owner) requests that the City consider the 
following action for the property located at 840 Wild Oak Trail, Independence, MN (PID No. 27-
118-24-33-0003): 
 

a. A conditional use permit to allow a ground mounted solar array on the subject 
property.   

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located at the end of Wild Oak Trail which is north of CSAH 6.  The property has an existing 
home, a detached accessory structure.  The property has the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 840 Wild Oak Trail  
Zoning: Agriculture 

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: 3.66 acres 
 
 
 

 

 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	2	
 

  Subject Property 

 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking approval to construct a ground mounted solar system on the subject property. 
Ground mounted solar systems require a conditional use permit in all zoning districts of the City.  Ground 
mounted solar systems have the following requirements: 
 
Subd. 5.  Ground-mounted solar energy systems shall conform to the following standards:  

 (a)  Ground-mounted systems shall only be allowed on a parcel with an existing principal structure.  

 (b)  Ground-mounted systems shall be located only in rear or side yards.  

 (c)  Ground-mounted systems shall not be located in the Shoreland Overlay District.  



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	3	
 

 (d)  Ground-mounted systems shall be wholly screened from view from the public right-of-way and   
adjacent residential structures. Methods for screening shall include berming, fencing, 
landscaping and/or combination thereof.  

 (e)  Ground-mounted systems shall be located on a parcel of at least 2.5 acres.  

 (f)  Ground-mounted systems shall be setback 40 feet from the rear yards.  

 (g)  Ground-mounted systems shall be setback 30 feet from the side yards.  

 (h)  Ground-mounted systems shall have a maximum area of 500 SF.  

 (i)  The maximum height for any component of the system shall be 15 feet.  

 (j)  Ground-mounted systems shall be in compliance with any applicable local, state and federal 
regulatory standards, including building, electrical and plumbing codes.  

 (k)    Ground-mounted systems and their support structures shall be designed by a certified 
professional to meet applicable professional standards for the local soil and climate conditions.  

 
The proposed ground mounted solar system would be located in the side yard to the east of the existing 
barn located in the northeast corner.  The proposed solar system would be comprised of one ground 
mounted array.  The total square footage of the two arrays would be 488 SF.  This would be less than the 
500 feet maximum SF permitted.  The arrays would be setback approximately 38 feet from the north 
property line (side yard).  The required setback is a minimum of 30 feet. 
 

 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	4	
 

The proposed ground mounted system would be approximately 11 feet to the top of the highest portion of 
the panels (height is variable based on angle).  The maximum height allowed for any component of the 
proposed system is 15 feet.  The City requires systems to be wholly screened from view of the public right 
of way and adjacent residential structures.  There are currently no residential structures located near the 
proposed location.  The proximity of the proposed ground mounted system to the nearest residence and or 
public right of way is ~550 feet and is protected from view by existing vegetation or elevation.  No screening 
is proposed along the north or east property lines.  One additional consideration relating to screening is that 
the panels will be oriented to face south.  This will help to mitigate glare and or other visual impacts to 
surrounding properties as there is a significant wooded area to the south of the subject property. 
 
The applicant has also provided the City with an updated site plan and image of the solar system.   
 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 
traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 
protect the city form pollution hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 
environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 
 
The City has discussed the proposed ground mounted solar system with the applicant.  It was noted that 
the proposed ground mounted solar system would offset approximately 85% of the applicant’s current 
power consumption.  The applicant also stated that if the ordinance relating to ground mounted solar allows 
for more area in the future, he would encourage consideration for a provision that allows expansion of the 
proposed system without additional review.  The proposed ground mounted solar system appears to meet 
all applicable standards provided for in the zoning ordinance.  The size of the system and its proximity to 
the surrounding property appears to adequately mitigate potential visual impacts.  Given the location of the 
property at the end of Wild Oak Trail, the orientation of the proposed solar system and its relationship to the 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	5	
 

surrounding properties, it appears that the proposed application can be found to meet the requirements for 
granting a conditional use permit amendment.   
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written or oral comments regarding the proposed amendment to the 
conditional use permit.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission pertaining to the request for a conditional use 
permit and amendment with the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed conditional use permit and amendment request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The conditional use permit will allow a ground mounted solar system to be located on the subject 

property and in accordance with the approved site plan attached hereto as EXHIBIT A. 
 
a. The ground mounted solar system shall be constructed in accordance with all applicable zoning 

code, building code and other applicable standards.  
 

3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the resolution granting 
approval of the conditional use permit. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Ground Mounted Solar Site Plans (Exhibit A) 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-01 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
ALLOW A GROUND MOUNTED SOLAR SYSTEM  

ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 840 WILD OAK TRAIL  
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, David Vandeneinde, (the “Owner”) submitted a request for a conditional 
use permit to allow a ground mounted solar system on the property located 840 Wild Oak Trail 
(PID No. 27-118-24-33-0003) (the “Property”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described as: 

Lot 006, Block 001 INDEPENDENCE RIDGE; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS the requested conditional use permit meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2022, to 
review the application for a conditional use permit, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  



 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
David Vandeneinde for a conditional use permit to allow a ground mounted solar system on the 
property per the City’s zoning regulations and with the findings provided within this resolution. 

 
 

1. The proposed conditional use permit request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
2. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions: 

 
a) The conditional use permit will allow a ground mounted solar system that is installed 

in accordance with the approved plans attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

b) The ground mounted solar system shall be constructed in accordance with all 
applicable zoning code, building code and other applicable standards.  

 
3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the 

resolution granting approval of the conditional use permit. 
 

4. The conditional use permit shall be recorded with Hennepin County. 
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
6th day of September 2022, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Site Plan) 

 



 

 
 
 
 



 

Applicant Information Owner Information

Name: Russel Gilberg

Address: 1231 Industrial St. Ste. 200
Hudson, Wisconsin 54016

Primary Phone: 715-381-9977

Secondary Phone: 612-669-5365

Email: claudia@energyconcepts.us

Name: David Vandeneinde

Address: 840 Wild Oak Trail
Maple Plain, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 763-238-0209

Email: 840Dave@gmail.com

Property Address:

PID:

Planning Application Type: Conditional Use Permit

Description:

Supporting Documents: Construction Plans

Signature:



N

641'-10"

31
7'-

10
"

693'-5"

10
9'-

10
"

11
1'-

10
"

44
'-2

"

269'-2"37'-2"

19
9'-

6"

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

PV 0.0

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

SHEET INDEX:
PV 0.0: COVER SHEET
PV 1.0: SITE PLAN
S 1.1: MOUNT DETAILS
E 1.1: 3-LINE DIAGRAM
E 1.2: NOTES
E 1.3: WARNING LABELS
E 1.3A: PLACARD
- EQUIPMENT SPEC SHEET

COVER SHEET

SCALE: NTS

2 SATELLITE VIEW
PV 0.0

SCALE: NTS

3 VICINITY MAP
PV 0.0SCALE: 1/64" = 1'-0"

1 PLOT PLAN
PV 0.0

PROTECTION OF EMERGENCY RESPONDERS
ALL SHARP EDGES AND FASTENER TIPS SHALL BE
COVERED OR CRIMPED OVER TO ELIMINATE SHARP
EDGES, TO MINIMIZE RISK OF INJURY TO EMERGENCY
RESPONDERS.
ALL ROOF MOUNTED CONDUITS, BOXES, AND
EQUIPMENT CROSSING PATHWAYS ARE TO BE
CLEARLY IDENTIFIED BY A RED/WHITE REFLECTIVE
TAPE OR OTHER APPROVED MATERIAL.

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS:

PHOTOVOLTAIC GROUND MOUNT SYSTEM

GENERAL NOTES:
a. INSTALLATION OF SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC

SYSTEM SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
NEC ARTICLE 690, AND ALL OTHER
APPLICABLE NEC CODES WHERE NOTED
OR EXISTING.

b. PROPER ACCESS AND WORKING
CLEARANCE AROUND EXISTING AND
PROPOSED ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT WILL
COMPLY WITH NEC ARTICLE 110.

c. ALL CONDUCTORS, INCLUDING THE
GROUNDING ELECTRODE CONDUCTOR
SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM PHYSICAL
DAMAGE IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC
ARTICLE 250.

d. ALL DC WIRES SHALL BE SIZED
ACCORDING TO [NEC 690.8]

e. DC CONDUCTORS SHALL BE WITHIN
PROTECTED RACEWAYS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH [NEC 690.31]

f. ALL SIGNAGE TO BE PLACED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL
JURISDICTIONAL BUILDING CODE.

g. PV MODULES TO BE RATED UL 1703
CLASS C FIRE RATING OR BETTER.

h. ALL EQUIPMENT TO BE CERTIFIED BY A
NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING
LABORATORY.

SYSTEM SIZE: 9.000 kW DC
7.600 kW AC

MODULE TYPE & AMOUNT: (20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
MODULE DIMENSIONS: (L/W/H) 83"/41.25"/1.6"
INVERTER: (01) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]
INTERCONNECTION METHOD: LINE SIDE TAP

20 MODULES-GROUND MOUNTED - 9.000 kW DC, 7.600 kW AC, 840 WILD OAK TRAIL, MAPLE PLAIN, MN  55359 (LAT.  44.9929, LONG.  -93.7037)

FR
ON

T 
OF

 H
OU

SE

W
ILD

 O
AK

 T
RA

IL

M

EXISTING  INTERIOR MAIN
SERVICE PANEL TIED TO

EXTERIOR UTILITY METER #N/A

GROUND ARRAY #1
(20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W

SLOPE: 35°
AZIM.: 180°

GOVERNING CODES
ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING CODES
· 2020 MINNESOTA BUILDING CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  RESIDENTIAL CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  FIRE CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  MECHANICAL CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA PLUMBING CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  REHABILITATION CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA ELECTRICAL CODE

MAIN
HOUSE

GARAGE

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

BARN



35'-2"

N

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

PV 1.0

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

EQUIPMENT
LAYOUT & SITE

PLAN

GROUND SECTION(S)

SYSTEM LEGEND

= EXTERIOR RUN

= RACKING SYSTEM

SYSTEM SIZE: 9.000 kW DC
7.600 kW AC

MODULE TYPE & AMOUNT: (20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
MODULE DIMENSIONS: (L/W/H) 83"/41.25"/1.6"
INVERTER: (01) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS: MODULE, ARRAY WEIGHT (LOAD CALC'S)
Number of Modules 20
Module Weight 55.12 LBS
Total Module (Array) Weight 1,102.4 LBS
Module Area (83"x41.25") 23.78 SqFt
Total Array Area 488 SqFt
Distributed Load
(Total Array Weight / Total Array Area)

2.26 Per SqFt

= CONDUIT JUNCTION BOXJB

MODULE - 20
SLOPE - 35°
AZIMUTH - 180°

GA #01

JB

M

EXISTING  INTERIOR MAIN SERVICE PANEL &
POINT OF INTERCONNECTION. TIED TO
EXTERIOR UTILITY METER #N/A

GA#01

~100' TRENCHED CONDUIT,
MINIMUM 18" DEEP IN PVC

NEW SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]
INVERTER

AC

NEW PV AC DISCONNECT GROUPED WITH SERVICE
EQUIPMENT (VISIBLE, LOCKABLE, LABELED)

EXISTING  INTERIOR MAIN SERVICE PANEL &
POINT OF INTERCONNECTION. TIED TO EXTERIOR
UTILITY METER #N/A.

NEW PHOTOVOLTAIC UTILITY DISCONNECT
SWITCH. LOCATED WITHIN 10' OF MSP.

M

AC

NEW 01 - SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V] INVERTERSI

20 NEW HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
MODULES

STRING #2 - 10 MODULES

STRING #1 - 10 MODULES

STRING(S)

I

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

1 SITE PLAN
PV 1.0

FRONT OF HOUSE

W
ILD OAK TRAIL

P

NEW PV METER

NEW PHOTOVOLTAIC UTILITY PRODUCTION METER.P



CHANNEL POST BELOW
(TYPICAL)

SOLAR MODULE
(TYPICAL)

VA
RI

ES
 W

IT
H 

TI
LT

 A
NG

LE

PURLIN BEHIND
(TYPICAL)

13'-4''
C/C POST
SPACING16'-10''

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

S 1.1

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

MOUNT DETAIL

SCALE: NTS

1  PV RACKING PLAN VIEW
S 1.1

SCALE: NTS

1 RACKING FRONT SIDE  DETAIL
S 1.1



SOLAR MODULE
(TYPICAL)

CHANNEL POST
(TYPICAL)

PURLIN
(TYPICAL)

35°

2'-
10

"

VA
RI

ES
 W

IT
H 

TI
LT

 A
NG

LE

JACK CONNECTIONS

1/2'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT

MANUALLY ADJUSTAVLE JACK

TRUSS TO POST CONNECTION

5/8'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT

PURLIN OVERLAP CONNECTION PURLIN TO TRUSS CONNECTION

1/2'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT

1/2'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT
1) - BOTTOM FLANGE
1) - WEB

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

S 1.2

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

MOUNT DETAIL

SCALE: NTS

1  PV RACKING BACK VIEW
S 1.2

SCALE: NTS

2  PV RACKING SIDE VIEW
S 1.2



Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

E 1.1

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

3-LINE
DIAGRAM

1

=

ACDC

2

- + - + - +

2 101

- + - +

+-

- +

2 101

(N) JUNCTION BOX
600 V, NEMA 4

UL LISTED

(N) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V] INVERTER
OUTPUT: 240VAC, 32A, RATED POWER 7600W

99% CEC WEIGHTED EFFICIENCY
NEMA 3R, UL LISTED, INTERNAL GFDI
WITH INTEGRATED DC DISCONNECT

20 NEW HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W MODULES.

Rooftop conductor ampacities designed in compliance with
art. 690.8, Tables 310.15(B)(2)(a), 310.15(B)(3)(a),
310.15(B)(3)(c), 310.15(B)(16), Chapter 9 Table 4, 5, & 9.
Location specific temperature obtained from ASHRAE 2017
data tables

AMBIENT TEMP (HIGH TEMP 2%)
RECORD LOW TEMP -27°C

32°C

CONDUIT HEIGHT 0.5"

ROOF TOP TEMP 54°C

CONDUCTOR TEMPERATURE RATE 90°C

INVERTER CHARACTERISTICS - SOLAREDGE SE 7600H-US
MAX OUTPUT POWER 7600 W
SYSTEM OPERATING VOLTAGE 400 V
MAX CONTINOUS OUTPUT CURRENT 32 A
MAX INPUT VOLTAGE 480 V
SYSTEM SHORT CIRCUIT CURRENT 15 A
MAX EFFICIENCY 99 %

PV MODULE RATING @ STC
MANUFACTURER
MAX. POWER-POINT CURRENT (IMP)

MAX. POWER-POINT VOLTAGE (VMP)

OPEN-CIRCUIT VOLTAGE (VOC)

SHORT-CIRCUIT CURRENT (ISC)

10.68 AMPS

42.16 VOLTS

50.03 VOLTS

11.29 AMPS
NOM. MAX. POWER AT STC (PMAX)

MAX. SYSTEM VOLTAGE

VOC TEMPERATURE COEFFICIENT

450 WATT

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM
DC SYSTEM SIZE (WATTS)

NOMINAL AC VOLTAGE 240V

9000W
AC SYSTEM SIZE (WATTS) 7600W

TOTAL NUMBER OF MODULES 20

WIRE
QTY

WIRE
TAG # CONDUIT WIRE TYPE CONDUIT

FILL:
TEMP

RATING:
WIRE
AMP

TEMP
DE-RATE:

WIRE
OCP:

MAX SYSTEM
VOLTAGE

GRND
SIZE

WIRE
GAUGE:

TERMINAL
75°C RATING: NEC: MAX

AMPS

x x = x =1.25 18.75A28.80A 25A90°C

35A =1.25 18.75Ax x = 24.32A90°C

65A x =1.25 40.00Ax x = 61.10A75°C

30A#12

40A#10

65A#6

1" PVC 40

3/4" PVC
80

WIRE FROM - -

JUNCTION BOX TO
INVERTER

INVERTER TO MSP

ARRAY TO
JUNCTION BOX1

2
3

PV WIRE

THWN-2

THWN-2

4 0.80

3 1.00

IN AIR

32A

x = GRND WIRE
TYPE

480V

480V

240V

#6

#6

#8

SBC

THWN-2

THWN-2

0.96

0.76

0.94

SYSTEM SIZE: 9.000 kW DC
7.600 kW AC

MODULE: (20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
INVERTER: (01) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]

HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W

4 NA

1500V

-0.30° %/°C

TRENCH CONDUIT

x

OPTMIZER
CURRENT

15A

15A

G

N

200A

M

(E) LOADS

G

N

3 EXISTING GROUNDING
ELECTRODE SYSTEM

(N) LOCKABLE BLADE
TYPE FUSIBLE AC

DISCONNECT NEMA 3R
60A-2P 120/240VAC

3

EXISTING  240V/200A BUS BAR RATING,
MAIN SERVICE PANEL, SINGLE PHASE,

WITH A 200A MAIN DISCONNECT
UTILITY COMPANY - WRIGHT HENNEPIN

UTILITY METER

LINE SIDE TAP

POINT OF INTERCONNECT, LINE SIDE

(E) LOADS

40A FUSES

M

(N) 125A
PHOTOVOLTAIC METER

3

 (UTILITY METER AT THE POLE BARN)

M

SERVICE METER WITH
DETENT

GENERAL SERVICE
METER WITH DETENT



Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

E 1.2

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

NOTES

SITE NOTES:
1. A LADDER WILL BE IN PLACE FOR INSPECTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH OSHA

REGULATIONS.
2. THE PV MODULES ARE CONSIDERED NON-COMBUSTIBLE AND THIS SYSTEM IS A

UTILITY INTERACTIVE SYSTEM WITH NO STORAGE BATTERIES.
3. THE SOLAR PV INSTALLATION WILL NOT OBSTRUCT ANY PLUMBING, MECHANICAL,

OR BUILDING ROOF VENTS.
4. PROPER ACCESS AND WORKING CLEARANCE AROUND EXISTING AND PROPOSED

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AS PER SECTION NEC 110.26.
5. ROOF COVERINGS SHALL BE DESIGNED, INSTALLED, AND MAINTAINED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THIS CODE AND THE APPROVED MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS SUCH THAT THE ROOF COVERING SERVES TO PROTECT THE
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE.

EQUIPMENT LOCATIONS:
1. ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL MEET MINIMUM SETBACKS AS REQUIRED BY NEC 110.26.
2. WIRING SYSTEMS INSTALLED IN DIRECT SUNLIGHT MUST BE RATED FOR EXPECTED

OPERATING TEMPERATURE AS SPECIFIED BY NEC 690.31 (A),(C) AND NEC TABLES
310.15 (B)(2)(A) AND 310.15 (B)(3)(C).

3. JUNCTION AND PULL BOXES PERMITTED INSTALLED UNDER PV MODULES
ACCORDING TO NEC 690.34.

4. ADDITIONAL AC DISCONNECT(S) SHALL BE PROVIDED WHERE THE INVERTER IS NOT
WITHIN SIGHT OF THE AC SERVICING DISCONNECT. 2.2.6 ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE
INSTALLED ACCESSIBLE TO QUALIFIED PERSONNEL ACCORDING TO NEC
APPLICABLE CODES.

5. ALL COMPONENTS ARE LISTED FOR THEIR PURPOSE AND RATED FOR OUTDOOR
USAGE WHEN APPROPRIATE.

STRUCTURAL NOTES:
1. RACKING SYSTEM & PV ARRAY WILL BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO

CODE-COMPLIANT INSTALLATION MANUAL. TOP CLAMPS REQUIRE A DESIGNATED
SPACE BETWEEN MODULES, AND RAILS MUST ALSO EXTEND A MINIMUM DISTANCE
BEYOND EITHER EDGE OF THE ARRAY / SUBARRAY, ACCORDING TO RAI
MANUFACTURER’S INSTRUCTIONS.

2. JUNCTION BOX WILL BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURERS' SPECIFICATIONS. IF
ROOF-PENETRATING TYPE, IT SHALL BE FLASHED & SEALED PER LOCAL
REQUIREMENTS.

3. ROOFTOP PENETRATIONS FOR PV RACEWAY WILL BE COMPLETED AND SEALED W/
APPROVED CHEMICAL SEALANT PER CODE BY A LICENSED CONTRACTOR.

4. ALL PV RELATED ROOF ATTACHMENTS TO BE SPACED NO GREATER THAN THE
SPAN DISTANCE SPECIFIED BY THE RACKING MANUFACTURER. 2.3.6 WHEN
POSSIBLE, ALL PV RELATED RACKING ATTACHMENTS WILL BE STAGGERED
AMONGST THE ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS.

WIRING & CONDUIT NOTES:
1. ALL CONDUIT AND WIRE WILL BE LISTED AND APPROVED FOR THEIR PURPOSE.

CONDUIT AND WIRE SPECIFICATIONS ARE BASED ON MINIMUM CODE
REQUIREMENTS AND ARE NOT MEANT TO LIMIT UP-SIZING.

2. CONDUCTORS SIZED ACCORDING TO NEC 690.8, NEC 690.7.
3. VOLTAGE DROP LIMITED TO 1.5%.
4. DC WIRING LIMITED TO MODULE FOOTPRINT.  MICRO INVERTER WIRING

SYSTEMS SHALL BE LOCATED AND SECURED UNDER THE ARRAY W/ SUITABLE
WIRING CLIPS.

5. AC CONDUCTORS COLORED OR MARKED AS FOLLOWS: PHASE A OR L1- BLACK
PHASE B OR L2- RED, OR OTHER CONVENTION IF THREE PHASE PHASE C OR L3-
BLUE, YELLOW, ORANGE**, OR OTHER CONVENTION NEUTRAL- WHITE OR GREY
IN 4-WIRE DELTA CONNECTED SYSTEMS THE PHASE WITH HIGHER VOLTAGE TO
BE MARKED ORANGE [NEC 110.15].

GROUNDING NOTES:
1. GROUNDING SYSTEM COMPONENTS SHALL BE LISTED FOR THEIR PURPOSE, AND

GROUNDING DEVISES EXPOSED TO THE ELEMENTS SHALL BE RATED FOR SUCH
USE.

2. PV EQUIPMENT SHALL BE GROUNDED ACCORDING TO NEC 690.43 AND MINIMUM
NEC TABLE 250.122.

3. METAL PARTS OF MODULE FRAMES, MODULE RACKING, AND ENCLOSURES
CONSIDERED GROUNDED IN ACCORD WITH 250.134 AND 250.136(A).

4. EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTORS SHALL BE SIZED ACCORDING TO NEC
690.45 AND MICRO INVERTER MANUFACTURERS’ INSTRUCTIONS.

5. EACH MODULE WILL BE GROUNDED USING WEEB GROUNDING CLIPS AS SHOWN IN
MANUFACTURER DOCUMENTATION AND APPROVED BY THE AHJ.  IF WEEBS ARE
NOT USED, MODULE GROUNDING LUGS MUST BE INSTALLED AT THE SPECIFIED
GROUNDING LUG HOLES PER THE MANUFACTURERS' INSTALLATION
REQUIREMENTS.

6. THE GROUNDING CONNECTION TO A MODULE SHALL BE ARRANGED SUCH THAT
THE REMOVAL OFA MODULE DOES NOT INTERRUPT A GROUNDING CONDUCTOR TO
ANOTHER MODULE.

7. GROUNDING AND BONDING CONDUCTORS, IF INSULATED, SHALL BE COLORED
GREEN OR MARKED GREEN IF #4 AWG OR LARGER [NEC 250.119]

8. THE GROUNDING ELECTRODE SYSTEM COMPLIES WITH NEC 690.47 AND NEC 250.50
THROUGH 250.106. IF EXISTING SYSTEM IS INACCESSIBLE, OR INADEQUATE, A
GROUNDING ELECTRODE SYSTEM PROVIDED ACCORDING TO NEC 250, NEC 690.47
AND AHJ.

9. GROUND-FAULT DETECTION SHALL COMPLY WITH NEC 690.41(B)(1) AND (2) TO
REDUCE FIRE HAZARDS

DISCONNECTION AND OVER-CURRENT PROTECTION NOTES:
1. DISCONNECTING SWITCHES SHALL BE WIRED SUCH THAT WHEN THE SWITCH IS

OPENED THE CONDUCTORS REMAINING ENERGIZED ARE CONNECTED TO THE
TERMINALS MARKED “LINE SIDE” (TYPICALLY THE UPPER TERMINALS).

2. DISCONNECTS TO BE ACCESSIBLE TO QUALIFIED UTILITY PERSONNEL, BE
LOCKABLE, AND BE A VISIBLE-BREAK SWITCH

3. PV SYSTEM CIRCUITS INSTALLED ON OR IN BUILDINGS SHALL INCLUDE A RAPID
SHUTDOWN FUNCTION TO REDUCE SHOCK HAZARD FOR EMERGENCY
RESPONDERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 690.12(A) THROUGH (D).

4. ALL OCPD RATINGS AND TYPES SPECIFIED ACCORDING TO NEC 690.8, 690.9, AND
240.

5. MICRO INVERTER BRANCHES CONNECTED TO A SINGLE BREAKER OR GROUPED
FUSES IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC 110.3(B).

6. IF REQUIRED BY AHJ, SYSTEM WILL INCLUDE ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT PROTECTION
ACCORDING TO NEC 690.11 AND UL1699B.

INTERCONNECTION NOTES:
1. LOAD-SIDE INTERCONNECTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH [NEC 705.12 (B)]
2. THE SUM OF THE UTILITY OCPD AND INVERTER CONTINUOUS OUTPUT MAY NOT

EXCEED 120% OF BUS BAR RATING [NEC 705.12(D)(2)(3)].
3. THE SUM OF 125 PERCENT OF THE POWER SOURCE(S) OUTPUT CIRCUIT CURRENT

AND THE RATING OF THE OVERCURRENT DEVICE PROTECTING THE BUS BAR
SHALL NOT EXCEED 120 PERCENT OF THE AMPACITY OF THE BUS BAR, PV
DEDICATED BACKFEED BREAKERS MUST BE LOCATED OPPOSITE END OF THE BUS
FROM THE UTILITY SOURCE OCPD [NEC 705.12(B)(2)(3)].

4. AT MULTIPLE ELECTRIC POWER SOURCES OUTPUT COMBINER PANEL, TOTAL
RATING OF ALL OVERCURRENT DEVICES SHALL NOT EXCEED AMPACITY OF
BUSBAR. HOWEVER, THE COMBINED OVERCURRENT DEVICE MAY BE EXCLUDED
ACCORDING TO NEC 705.12 (B)(2)(3)(C).

5. FEEDER TAP INTERCONNECTION (LOADSIDE) ACCORDING TO NEC 705.12 (B)(2)(1)
6. SUPPLY SIDE TAP INTERCONNECTION ACCORDING TO NEC 705.12 (A) WITH

SERVICE ENTRANCE CONDUCTORS IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC 230.42
2.7.8BACKFEEDING BREAKER FOR ELECTRIC POWER SOURCES OUTPUT IS EXEMPT
FROM ADDITIONAL FASTENING [NEC 705.12 (B)(5)].



N

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

E 1.3

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

WARNING
LABELS

CAUTION:
POWER TO THIS BUILDING IS ALSO SUPPLIED

FROM THE FOLLOWING SOURCES WITH
DISCONNECTS LOCATED AS SHOWN

W
ILD OAK TRAIL

AC
M

(20) PV MODULES

MAIN SERVICE PANEL

I

INVERTER

UTILITY METER
AC DISCONNECT

P

PV METER

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEMS

(PER CODE: NEC 690)

A

SOLAR PV SYSTEM
EQUIPPED WITH RAPID

SHUTDOWN
TURN RAPID
SHUTDOWN

SWITCH TO THE
"OFF" POSITION TO

SHUTDOWN PV
SYSTEM AND

REDUCE
SHOCK HAZARD
IN THE ARRAY

SOLAR
ELECTRIC

PV PANELS

AT INVERTER [IFC 605.11.3.1(1) & 690.56(C)]
PER CODE: NEC 2020

ELECTRICAL SHOCK HAZARD

TERMINALS ON BOTH LINE AND
LOAD SIDES MAY BE ENERGIZED

IN THE OPEN POSITION

WARNING!

LABEL LOCATION:
WHERE ALL TERMINALS OF THE DISCONNECTING MEANS MAY BE
ENERGIZED IN THE OPEN POSITION, A WARNING SIGN SHALL BE
MOUNTED ON OR ADJACENT TO THE DISCONNECTING MEANS.
PER CODE(S): NEC 2020:
NEC 706.15(C)(4) and NEC 690.13(B)

WARNING! DUAL POWER SOURCE
SECOND SOURCE IS PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM

LABEL LOCATION:
PRODUCTION / NET METER (BI-DIRECTIONAL)
NEC: 2020
NEC 690.59, 705.12(D)(3)

WARNING: PHOTOVOLTAIC
POWER SOURCE

MAIN PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEM DISCONNECT

LABEL LOCATION:  MAIN SERVICE DISCONNECT, NEC 2020, 690.13(B)

POWER SOURCE OUTPUT
CONNECTION. DO NOT RELOCATE

THIS OVERCURRENT DEVICE.

WARNING!

LABEL LOCATION:
MAIN SERVICE DISCONNECT
NEC: 2020, 705.12(B)(3)(2)

LABEL LOCATION:
PERMANENT WARNING LABELS SHALL BE APPLIED
TO DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT, AC DISCONNECT
NEC: 2020, PER CODE: 705.12(B)(3)(3)

 PHOTOVOLTAIC

AC DISCONNECT
LABEL LOCATION:
AC DISCONNECT, NEC: 2020, (NEC 690.13(B)

 PHOTOVOLTAIC

DC DISCONNECT
LABEL LOCATION:
DC DISCONNECT
(NEC 690.13(B)

M

A
C

IN
V

E
R

T
E

R

J/B

PV ARRAY

WARNING: PHOTOVOLTAIC
POWER SOURCE

LABEL LOCATION :
EXPOSED RACEWAY, CABLE TRAYS, JUNCTION BOX
NEC: 2020, PER CODE: NEC 690.31(D)(2)

LABEL LOCATION:
AC DISCONNECT, POINT OF INTERCONNECTION
NEC: 2020
(PER CODE: NEC 690.54)

UTILITY FUSED AC DISCONNECT
PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM AC DISCONNECT

RATED AC OPERATING CURRENT 32 AMPS
AC NOMINAL OPERATING VOLTAGE 240 VOLTS

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM
EQUIPPED WITH

RAPID SHUTDOWN
LABEL LOCATION:
UTILITY SERVICE ENTRANCE/METER, INVERTER/DC DISCONNECT IF REQUIRED BY
LOCAL AHJ, OR OTHER LOCATIONS AS REQUIRED BY LOCAL AHJ.
PER CODE(S): NEC 2020: ARTICLE 690.56(C)

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEMS

(PER CODE: NEC 690)

PHOTOVOLTAIC DC DISCONNECT
MAXIMUM SYSTEM VOLTAGE:
MAXIMUM CIRCUIT CURRENT:
MAX RATED OUTPUT CURRENT OF THE CHARGE
CONTROLLER OR DC-TO-DC CONVERTER (IF INSTALLED):

VDC
ADC

ADC

480

20

15

INVERTER #1 (SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V])

LABEL LOCATION:
INVERTER(S), DC DISCONNECT(S).
PER CODE(S): NEC 2020,
PER CODE: 690.53

THIS EQUIPMENT FED BY MULTIPLE
SOURCES, TOTAL RATING OF ALL

OVERCURRENT DEVICES,
EXCLUDING MAIN SUPPLY

OVERCURRENT DEVICE, SHALL NOT
EXCEED AMPACITY OF BUSBAR.

WARNING! M
PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEM METER















8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Minor Subdivision to Permit a Lot Line Rearrangement for the  

Properties Located at and Adjacent to 8910 Highway 12 
 

To: City Council 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022 
Applicant/Owner: John Peterson/ Jean P & A Sterner Etal 

Location: 8910 Highway 12  
 

Request: 
John Peterson (Applicant) and Jean P & A Sterner Etal (Owner) requests that the City consider 
the following action for the properties generally located at 8910 US Hwy 12, Independence, MN 
(PID No’s. 07-118-24-41-0003 and 07-118-24-42-0004): 
 

a. A minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement which would adjust the line 
that separates the two properties and cleans up a property line discrepancy along the 
north property line.   
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located just west of Lake Haughey Road and North of Hwy 12.  There 
are two principal structures located on the 8910 property along with several detached accessory 
structures.  There are no structures on the westerly parcel (07-118-24-42-0004).  The property 
has the following site characteristics:    
 

Property Information: 8910 Highway 12 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
  

Acreage (Before Parcel A - north): 38.70  Acreage (After Parcel A - north): 41.60  
 Acreage (Before Parcel A - south): 18.00  Acreage (After Parcel A - south): 18.00 
 

Acreage (Before Parcel B - north): 42.95  Acreage (Before Parcel A - north): 40.19  
 Acreage (Before Parcel B - south): 14.39  Acreage (Before Parcel B - south): 14.39 
  



8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

 
 

Aerial of Subject Properties 

  
 

Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking a minor subdivision to adjust several lot lines and correct a property line 
discrepancy.  The proposed lot line rearrangement would adjust the north/south property line that 
runs between the two subject properties.  The line would move to the west north of the railroad 
tracks so that it aligns with the north/south line that runs south of the railroad tracks.  In addition 
to this realignment, the applicant has noted that there is a piece of property to the north of the 
subject Parcel A that should be incorporated into the property.  This can be seen on Hennepin 
County GIS.  The applicant is proposing to adjust the north property line so that it incorporates 
the property that has historically been included within the fenced portion of the subject property.   
 
The proposed lot line adjustments will add approximately 3 acres to the easterly property (Parcel 
A) and reduce the westerly property by the same.  Both properties are under the control of the 
applicant’s family members and there is agreement relating to the proposed adjustment with the 
adjacent property owner to the north. 

SUBJECT SITES 



8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

 
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion and Recommendation: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the request and asked questions of staff and the applicant.  
There was some discussion relating to the “unclaimed” property along the north line.  It was 

Property Line Adjustment 
(north/south)

Property Line Adjustment 
(east/west) 



8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

noted that there is still a small triangular piece that will remain as unclaimed in the after 
condition as a result of the property owners not wanting to incur the costs and time of pursuing 
acquisition of the property.  Commissioners found the request for the lot line rearrangement met 
the applicable criteria and recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Summary: 
The proposed lot line rearrangement is generally in keeping with the City’s zoning and subdivision 
regulations.  The City reviewed the proposed subdivision and did not find any potential issues 
relating to the requested minor subdivision.  No new lots are being created and both lots are 
conforming in both the before and after conditions.  The City is not requesting any additional 
drainage and utility easements due to the minimal change and overall size of the subject parcels.  
The proposed minor subdivision appears to meet all of the applicable standards of the City’s zoning 
and subdivision ordinance.   
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written comments regarding the proposed minor subdivision.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested minor subdivision with the 
following findings: 
 

1. The proposed minor subdivision for a lot line rearrangement meets all applicable criteria 
and conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use Regulations of 
the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

minor subdivision. 
  

3. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 
within six (6) months of approval. 
 
 

 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Before and After Subdivision Survey  
 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-02 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW 
A LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT BETWEEN THE PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED AT AND ADJACENT TO 8910 HIGHWAY 12 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, John Peterson (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for minor subdivision 
to allow a lot line rearrangement between the properties located at and adjacent to 8910 Highway 
12 (PID No’s. 07-118-24-41-0003 and 07-118-24-42-0004): (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Properties are zoned Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS, the Properties are legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS the requested minor subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2022 to 
review the application for a minor subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
John Peterson and grants approval of a minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement for 



 

the subject properties in accordance with the City’s zoning regulations with the following 
findings and conditions: 

1. The proposed minor subdivision and rezoning of that portion to be added to 4390 
Woodhill Dr. request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter 
V, Section 500, Subdivisions and Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of 
Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review and recording 

of the requested minor subdivision. 
 
3. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the 

county within six (6) months of approval. 
 
This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 6th day of 
September 2022, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         

 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Parcel A: 
The Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, except R.R. Land, and, Government Lot 3, all in 
Section 7, Township 118, Range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota. 
AND 
That part of the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 7, Township 118, Range 
24, Hennepin County, Minnesota, described as follows: 
Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; 
thence on an assumed bearing of South 89 degrees 55 minutes 36 seconds West, along 
the South line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, a distance of 43.72 
feet; thence North 00 degrees 11 minutes 36 seconds West, a distance of 809.16 feet to 
the Southerly right of way line of Burlington Northern Railroad; thence South 69 degrees 
11 minutes 19 seconds East, along said Southerly right of way line, a distance of 66.12 
feet to the East line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence South 01 
degrees 07 minutes 11 seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 785.76 feet to the 
point of beginning. 
 
Parcel B: 
That part of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 7, Township 118, Range 24, 
Hennepin County, Minnesota, lying Northerly of the railroad right of way. 
AND 
That part of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 7, lying Southerly of the 
railroad right of way and Westerly of a line running from a point on the South line of said West 
Half of the Southeast Quarter, a distance of 43.72 feet West from the Southeast corner thereof to 
a point on the Southerly line of the railroad right of way, a distance of 66.12 feet Westerly, as 
measured along said Southerly line from the East line of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter; 
except the South 830 feet of the West 515.00 feet of the West Half of the Section Quarter and 
except the East 407.02 feet of the West 982.02 feet of the South 535.00 feet of the West Half of 
the Southeast Quarter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 1 
 

City of Independence 

Review of a Proposed 28 Unit Subdivision  
on the Subject Properties Generally Located  

at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive and to be known as BridgeVine 
 

To: City Council   
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022 
Applicant: BohLand Development 

Owner: Clifford L. Otten Trust 
Location: 2236 South Lake Shore Drive 

 

UPDATE 09.06.2022: 
Following review and consideration at the August 16, 2022, City Council Meeting, Council 
directed the applicant to consider providing additional information relating to the proposed 
development.  The applicant has provided additional information relating to several key 
discussion points as follows: 
 

o Stormwater: the applicant has agreed to strengthen the proposed stormwater 
management system for this development in several key locations.  The applicant is now 
proposing to add a rain garden/infiltration area on the northern edge of Lot 3.  This rain 
garden area will add an additional level of filtration for water that runs off of Lots, 1, 2, 
and 3 prior to heading towards the lakeshore.  The applicant is also proposing to add a 
rain garden/infiltration area to Outlot A that will further filter stormwater that drains to 
the west under South Lake Shore.   
 
Along with these stormwater mitigation measures, the applicant has provided the City 
with a table showing that the proposed stormwater system will be reducing the peak 
runoff rates (from the current condition) for stormwater heading towards Lake 
Independence that goes to the ravine system to the east and the drainage system to the 
west (see attached drainage exhibit). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 2 
 

 
 

Rain Garden – Lot 3 
 

 
 

Rain Garden – Outlot A 

 
 
 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 3 
 

o Common Area Dock: The applicant is proposing to move the location of a potential 
pontoon boat dock.  The applicant is no longer proposing an Outlot, but is now proposing 
a trail easement between lots 5 and 8 and connecting to the common area of Outlot D.  
This location is internal to the development.  The applicant has also provided a narrative 
of the proposed restrictions relating to the use of the easement and dock (see attached).  If 
recommended for approval, the City would include a condition as a part of the Planned 
Unit Development that would place more regulation on this development and the dock 
access and dock number permitted. 
 

o The applicant is proposing to deed Outlot E to the City of Independence.  The City’s lift 
station currently occupies a portion of this property.  There would be no access to the 
Maple Street easement from this property.   

 

 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 4 
 

o Trail/Sidewalk: The City met with Three Rivers Park District to discuss a trail 
connection to Baker Park. The park district is going to further review a potential 
connection but is did not believe that a connection into the campground walking path 
would be supported.  Instead, it was discussed that a trail along CSAH 19 to the 
underpass beneath the road may be a better solution.  This would likely require the 
involvement of Hennepin County.  To address this issue now it is recommended that the 
City consider identifying a trail alignment/easement within Outlot A along Perkinsville 
Road that could be extended to the east at a future date.  In addition, the City could 
consider requiring a trail payment in lieu of construction for that portion of the trail.  This 
finding could then be used in the future by the City to fund that portion of the trail.   

 
 
Request: 
Charles Wiemerslage and Steve Bohl – BohLand Development (Applicant) and Clifford L. Otten 
Trust (Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for the properties generally 
located at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-
118-24-11-0009 and 24-118-24-11-0012): 

 
a. A comprehensive plan amendment to allow the subject property to be re-guided to a 

new residential zoning district with standards to be determined. 
b. An ordinance amendment to allow planned unit developments as a conditional use in 

the Rural Residential Zoning District (at Final Plat) 
c. Rezoning of the property to Rural Residential. 
d. A conditional use permit to allow a planned unit development (at Final Plat). 
e. A preliminary plat for the proposed subdivision of the property into 28 single-family 

lots with a minimum lot size of 1 acre. 
 
  
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the north side of Perkinsville Road and in-between South Lake Shore 
Drive and County Road 19.   The property has frontage on Lake Independence and is comprised 
primarily of agriculture land.  There are two homes on the subject property along with several 
detached accessory buildings.  The property is comprised of densely wooded areas, wetlands and 
tillable acreage.  
 

Property Information: 2236 South Lake Shore Drive 
 Zoning: Agriculture (S-Shoreland Overlay) 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 

Acreage: ~48 acres  
 
 
 
 
 
 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 5 
 

2236 South Lake Shore Drive Aerial 

 
 
Discussion: 
The City has reviewed and considered several concept plans for this property dating back to 
2018.  The initial concept plan submitted to the City was for a 96-unit subdivision.  In 2020 a 
revised concept plan was submitted for a 28-unit subdivision.  It was noted at that time that the 
City needed to finalize the Comprehensive Plan prior to considering any additional action on this 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 6 
 

property.  The Comprehensive Plan is nearing completion and the City has received an 
application for a preliminary plat and associated actions relating to a new development on this 
property.  Any consideration by the City relating to this application would be subject to 
finalization and approval of the City’s 2040 Comprehensive and approval of a Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment to allow the development of this property. 
 
Comprehensive Plan 
 
The City’s adopted 2030 and Council Approved 2040 Plan (waiting for final Metropolitan 
Council approval) identifies this property as Rural Residential with limited sewer service.  The 
Rural Residential designation allows for a general development density of 1 unit per 5 acres.  
The portion of the property that is located within the Shoreland Overlay zoning district could 
potentially be developed in accordance with the requisite shoreland standards.  These standards 
generally allow for property within the shoreland overlay (1,000 feet from the OHWL) to be 
developed as one (1) acre lots if provided with City sewer.  The City has noted that the property 
is currently served by the existing sanitary sewer which runs along two sides of the property 
(South Lake Shore and Perkinsville Road).   
 

2030 Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 7 
 

City Approved 2040 Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 
 
Proposed Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 
 
The applicant has prepared a preliminary plat and associated plans for review by the City.  The 
City has reviewed the plans and provided detailed comments and feedback to the applicant.  The 
current guided designation would allow this property to be rezoned to Rural Residential with a 
portion of the property falling under the S-Shoreland Overlay (all property within 1,000 feet of 
the OHWL of Lake Independence).  There are approximately 26 acres located within the area 
governed by the S-Shoreland Overlay.  The number of lots that this area would yield is likely 
between 18-22 lots given the lakeshore, existing topography and configuration of the property 
covered by the overlay district.  For the remaining 22 acres the number of lots that could be 
developed would be governed by the Rural Residential standards shown below.  22 acres could 
yield 4-5 lots depending on the exact acreage of the remaining land outside of the shoreland 
overlay area.  The total number of lots that could be realized on this property utilizing the current 
zoning standards is estimated to be between 20-25. 
 
The City reviewed the existing sewer system and met with the Metropolitan Council and the City 
of Medina relating to the possibility of developing this property.  The relatively low density (less 
than 3 units per acre) of the proposed subdivision does present a challenge to gaining approval 
by the Metropolitan Council.  Review of the City’s sanitary sewer system identified the capacity 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 8 
 

to service the proposed subdivision.  The City has identified several upgrades and system 
improvements that will be necessary for this development to occur.  The City would require a 
condition of approval to provide for any recommended updates necessary to the lift station to 
accommodate this development.  
 
The City also completed a traffic analysis pertaining to the potential impacts of a potential 96-
unit development.  Generally, the traffic analysis found that there was capacity on CSAH 29 and 
Perkinsville Road to accommodate development of this parcel.  It has been noted by the City that 
any development of this property would have potential traffic impacts to Perkinsville Road and 
County Road 29.  The City has limited ability to require off-site improvements due to the current 
restrictions relating to impact fees.  The City has continued to discuss possible improvements to 
the intersection of CSAH 19 and Perkinsville Road with Hennepin County along with trying to 
identify additional funding sources.  
 
The City completed a detailed review of the proposed development and provided detailed 
comments to the applicant (see attached letter) as follows: 
 

1. The proposed layout shows that those lots with direct shoreland would be developed so 
that the homes could be located at the top of the existing slope.  This configuration is 
preferable due to the existing vegetation and slopes moving from south to north. 

 
2. The surrounding area has a mixture of lot types, sizes and densities.  A quick analysis of 

the approximately 21 surrounding (abutting) properties indicates that the average lot size 
is close to 1.5 acres with the smallest property being 0.2 acres.  The nearby properties 
located on Lake Independence (within 1,000 feet of the subject property) also range in 
size with the average lots size being approximately 0.5 acres.  The approximate net 
density of the abutting properties is approximately .75 units per acre.  The proposed 
development would have a net density of .75 units per acre.  

 
3. The proposed development would preserve a buffer and open space area along 

Perkinsville and South Lake Shore Drive.  This area is proposed to be planted to help 
screen the proposed development from the surrounding properties.  The applicant has 
prepared a preliminary landscape plan for further consideration.  The City reviewed the 
preliminary landscape plan and offers several additional comments: 

 
a. The proposed landscape plan should identify the actual existing trees to be saved.  

The plans note that the existing trees will remain along both Perkinsville Road 
and South Lake Shore Dr.   
 

b. The City will want to see buffering and screening along the rear yards of Lots 15-
18, Block 1. 
 

4. The subject property has a significant natural feature that consists of a wooded “ravine” 
that runs from west to southeast through the northern portion of the property.  The 
proposed plans have identified this area and show that a significant portion of this area 
would be preserved.  It is noted that the applicant is willing to consider placing an 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 9 
 

easement over the portion of this area that can be preserved to ensure its long-term 
protection.  The City is recommending that a condition of the approval requires the 
establishment of a protective easement or similar conveyance tool. 

 
5. A portion of the proposed property is located within 1,000 feet of Lake Independence and 

is therefore within the Shoreland Overlay District.  This plan will be subject to the review 
of the Department of Natural Resources. 

 
6. This plan will be subject to the review of the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 

Commission.  
 

7. The plan indicates all lots will be connected to City sewer.  This property is guided by the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan for RR-Rural Residential and currently has 2 sewer 
connections.   In order for the City to consider connection to the City sewer, a 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment will be required.  In additional to the comprehensive 
plan amendment, the City’s sanitary sewer is routed through the City of Medina and 
permitted through the Quad City Agreement.  An amendment to that agreement will be 
necessary in order to serve this property with sewer.  Any initial approval of the proposed 
development will be subject to an amendment of the Comprehensive Plan and Quad 
Cities Agreement.  

 
8. Additional comments relating to potential lift station upgrades, grading, road construction 

and infrastructure will be provided in a separate letter from the City’s engineer. 
 

9. The proposed preliminary plat indicates six lots with riparian access (frontage or access) 
on Lake Independence.  Any lot directly abutting the lake would need to comply with 
applicable shoreland overlay standards.  The shoreland overlay requires a minimum lot 
size of 1 acre and a minimum shoreland lot width of 100 linear feet.  The subject property 
has approximately 700 linear feet of shoreline on Lake Independence.  Detailed review of 
each riparian lot relating to slopes, bluffs and general grading will be required if the 
development is approved.    

 
10. It is noted that there is a 30-foot-wide strip of land that borders Lake Independence along 

Maple Drive.  The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed use of this lot as a 
common dock.  Commissioners were concerned about the potential impact of this 
property on the adjacent lots.  Commissioners recommended that the common use of this 
lot not be permitted.  The applicant has revised their initial plan to now include a new 
Outlot located to the east of the 4915 South Lake Shore Dr. (furthest east property 
adjacent to subject property).  The proposed Outlot (Outlot F) will allow for one (1) 
community owned pontoon boat to be docked on Lake Independence.  The applicant has 
prepared a more detailed narrative and graphic exhibit of the proposed Outlot F and 
associated trail (attached to this report).  The proposed use of this land as a common 
HOA element with a dock and boat slips will need to be further discussed and reviewed 
by the City.  Staff is seeking direction from the City Council relating to this issue. 

 
11. The City does not have applicable zoning for this type of sewered residential 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 10 
 

development.  It is proposed that the City’s Rural Residential zoning ordinance be 
amended to allow Planned Unit Developments (PUD) in the Rural Residential zoning 
district.  The City will need to adopt physical lot standards associated with the PUD.  If a 
PUD is adopted, it is recommended that the riparian lakeshore lots be required to comply 
with applicable shoreland district standards.  The City is recommending the following 
additional lot standards: 

 
Minimum lot size:  1 acre (43,560 SF) 
Minimum lot width:  100 feet at right of way line 
Front yard setback:   35 feet from right of way line 
Side yard setback:  15 feet 
Corner yard setback:  35 feet 
Rear yard setback:  40 feet 
Shoreland setback:  100 feet 
Setback from lake:  100 feet from ordinary high mark 
Setback from wetland: 10 ten feet from the outside edge of the required wetland 
buffer 
 
The plans will need to be revised to clearly show the building setbacks.  It is also 
recommended that a plan be prepared that shows a “typical” house plan for each lot to 
verify that the lots can accommodate a home site.  A draft ordinance amendment as been 
drafted for review and consideration.  The ordinance amendment and PUD requirements 
would be considered at the time of final plat. 

12. It does not appear that there are any proposed HOA/Covenant restrictions relating to 
accessory structures. Please provide additional information relating to proposed thoughts 
on accessory structures.  The City would propose developing a new accessory structure 
provision with the PUD similar to the following: 
 

Accessory Structure Maximum Size: 1,000 square feet (combined attached garage 
and detached accessory structures). 

Accessory Structure Setbacks:  Front Yard – located to the rear of the 
principal structure. 

 Side Yard – 15 feet 
 Rear Yard – 40 feet 
 
Accessory Structure Height:  Maximum height shall be limited to14 feet 

or height of principal structure, whichever 
is less.  Maximum garage door height is 
eight 8 feet. 

 
13. The proposed plan indicates open space around the perimeter and includes Outlots A, B, 

C, D, and F.  Outlot D, which is centrally located is proposed to contain an HOA 
community amenity space (see attached detailed plan).  All Outlots will become the 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 11 
 

responsibility of the homeowner’s association established for this development.  
Documentation indicating the conveyance of this ownership and the maintenance 
responsibility has been provided to the City. The Outlots will be maintained as described 
in the HOA documents as mowed and managed landscape open areas.  

 
14. The preliminary plat indicates a 66-foot-wide ROW and a 26-foot-wide road.  The street 

construction plan indicates a 30-foot-wide street.  The preliminary plat will need to be 
revised to match the construction drawings.   

 
15. Lots 16 and 17, Block 1 are less than 1 acre in size and will need to be modified to meet 

the minimum lot size requirements. 
 

16. There is an existing tree stand located on the property which is primarily along the 
ravine/drainage area.  The City is concerned and desires that these areas are preserved 
and protected in the after condition of the property.  The City has shoreland alteration 
limitations specified in the shoreland ordinance.  In order to ensure that these trees and 
the ravine are fully preserved, it is recommended that a condition of the approval include 
adding language to the PUD relating to tree preservation on the lakeshore properties. 

 
17. Please indicate the top of bluff structure setbacks on the site plan. 

 
18. Please label all drainage and utility easements on the preliminary plat.  It appears that 

there should be extended onto Lots 14 and 15 and 6 and 7, Block 1. 
 

19. Park dedication will be required for this development.  No dedication of open space was 
discussed during the concept plan review of this property.  The proposed development 
does not include sidewalks or trails.  Planning Commissioners discussed the possibility of 
adding a trail along South Lake Shore Dr. and Perkinsville Road.  The applicant stated 
that they would be agreeable to a sidewalk. Staff is seeking direction from City Council 
relating to a sidewalk and or trail.   The City had discussed a trail along Perkinsville at 
one time but understand that it may be challenging to extend the trail beyond this 
property without a designated connection point on CSAH 19.    Cash in lieu of land will 
be required in accordance with the City’s current park dedication fee of $3,500 per lot 
(less than 4.99 acres).  One park dedication credit will be given for the existing house 
proposed to remain.  The park dedication fee requirement for this development is 
anticipated to be approximately $94,500 (27 lots x $3,500). 

 
20. Please see the comments provided by the City’s Water Resource Engineer, Shane Nelson, 

dated June 2, 2022, pertaining to water resources.  Stormwater is going to be collected 
and routed to 2 stormwater ponds with adjacent filtration basins.  Stormwater will be 
treated to maintain and improve water quality and also retained to ensure that the rate of 
runoff is not increased as a result of the proposed improvements.  The majority of this 
sites water runoff will be collected prior to getting to the lake.   

 
21. Please see the comments provided by the City’s Civil Engineer, Andrew Budde, dated 

August 10, 2022, pertaining to engineering comments. 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 12 
 

 
 
Planning Commission Discussion/Recommendation: 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the request, held the public hearing and asked questions of 
staff and the applicant.  Commissioners discussed the location of the 1,000-foot shoreland 
setback line.  Commissioners also asked and discussed the number of lots that could be realized 
using the underlying zoning standards.  Staff noted that this site would likely yield somewhere 
around 20-25 lots using the underlying zoning (see attached past concept plan with 1,000-foot 
shoreland line).  Commissioners discussed a possible sidewalk being added within the 
development and or along South Lake Shore Drive.  Commissioners noted that the ravine would 
make it challenging for owners of Lots 8 and 9 to get to the lake.  The applicant noted that they 
would work with those lot owners to identify a walking path to get to the lake.  Commissioners 
discussed the ravine, existing trees along the lakeshore and concerns relating to preservation of 
the natural resources.  Commissioners recommended that protective easements be placed over 
the ravine and existing trees.  Commissioners discussed the proposed Outlot E common dock.  
Commissioners noted concerns relating to the potential impact of the common dock to the 
adjacent properties.  Commissioners recommended that the common dock and the use of Outlot 
E by the association be prohibited.  Commissioners noted that a common Outlot located to the 
east could be considered.     Commissioners reviewed the draft ordinance language and noted 
that accessory structure limitations and asked that the applicants covenants mirror the City 
language.  Commissioners ultimately recommended approval of the proposed comprehensive 
plan amendment, subdivision, preliminary plat and rezoning with the addition of several 
conditions.  The additional conditions included adding a sidewalk to the development, adding 
restrictive easements over the ravine area, restricting tree clearing along the ravine and lakeshore 
lots and limiting accessory structures as described within the draft ordinance language. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the application for a comprehensive plan 
amendment, rezoning and preliminary plat, subject to the approval of an ordinance amendment, 
conditional use permit, and Metropolitan Council approval of the comprehensive plan 
amendment with the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed rezoning, preliminary plat and comprehensive plan amendment meet all 
applicable conditions, criteria and restrictions stated in the City of Independence 
Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the preliminary plat is subject to approval and completion of 
the following items: 

 
a) Metropolitan Council approval of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment. 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 13 
 

 
b) Review and adoption of an ordinance amendment to include planned unit 

developments as a conditional use in the RR-Rural Residential zoning district. 
 

c) Rezoning of the property from AG-Agriculture to RR-Rural Residential. 
 

d) Review and approval of a conditional use permit approving a planned unit 
development.   

 
e) Approval of the Quad City Agreement (stipulates sewer connections through 

Medina) by the applicable cities that are a party to the agreement. 
 

f) The Applicant shall address all engineering comments made by the City’s 
Civil Engineer, Andrew Budde, dated August 10, 2022, pertaining to 
engineering comments. 

 
g) The Applicant shall address all engineering comments made by the City’s 

Water Resource Engineer, Shane Nelson, dated June 2, 2022, pertaining to 
water resources. 
 

h) The Applicant shall make all revisions requested in the staff report, Planning 
Commission and City Council. 

 
i) The Applicant shall prepare a restrictive and protective easement over and 

across the area generally described as the “ravine” to the satisfaction of the 
City.   

 
j) The proposed PUD will include the following provisions and restrictions: 

 

a.  Regulations relating to tree removal on all riparian lots within the 
proposed subdivision.  The final language will be drafted and 
considered at the time of final plat. 
 

b. Regulations relating to the number and location of docks. 
 

k) The Applicant shall receive approval and comply with all applicable 
regulations and conditions prescribed by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Organization. 

 
l) The Applicant shall receive the approval of the Department of Natural 

Resources. 
 

m) The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 
development. 
 



2236 South Lake Shore Drive (BridgeVine) – Preliminary Plat Review Page 14 
 

n) The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the 
development agreement for all improvements associated with this 
development. 

 
o) The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of the HOA agreement and 

covenants, including information related to the maintenance plantings and 
storm water easements. 

 
p) The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other 

regulatory agency approval and permits prior to construction. 
 

3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the 
comprehensive plan amendment, subdivision, rezoning, ordinance amendment and 
conditional use permit and preliminary plat and general plan. 
 

4. The Applicant shall submit the final plat to the City within 180 days of the 
preliminary plat approval.   

 
         

Attachments:   

RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-03 – Considering approval of a comprehensive plan 
amendment  
ORDINANCE 2022-05: Considering rezoning of the subject property from AG-
Agriculture to RR-Rural Residential 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-04 – Considering approval of a preliminary plat for 
the proposed subdivision of the property into 28 single-family lots  
Application 
Narrative 

  Outlots Narrative and Trail Exhibit 
  Preliminary Plat 
  Construction Drawings 
  Staff Comment Letters 
  Draft Ordinance  
  Underlying Zoning Concept Plan and Shoreland Setback Exhibit 
 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-03 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN FOR THE EXPANSION OF THE MUSA AS RECOMMENDED BY THE CITY 

OF INDEPENDENCE PLANNING COMMISSION AND CITY COUNCIL 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2019 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Steve Bohl (Applicant) and Clifford L Otten Trust (Owner) request approval of 
a comprehensive plan amendment to support a preliminary plat to allow a 28 lot development of 
the properties generally located at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-
118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009 and 24-118-24-11-0012) (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat is further depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Independence (hereinafter the City), in accordance with the Land 
Use Planning Act (Minn Stat. 473.145-473.871) has developed a Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in December, 2019 the City of Independence adopted the 2040 
Comprehensive Plan to promote the health, safety and welfare of the City by effectively guiding 
long-range growth and development within the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on July 19, 2022 wherein the following 
Comprehensive Plan amendment herein adopted was reviewed and commented on by members 
of the public; and 
 



 

 WHEREAS, the City of Independence Planning Commission has reviewed and 
recommended the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan at a regular monthly meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Independence Planning Commission reviewed the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, found the amendment to be consistent with the vision of the 
Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the City Council will decide whether to adopt the 
proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan subject to approval by the Metropolitan 
Council; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be used as the basis for, among other things, 
updating the zoning ordinance and as a guide for approving or disapproving actions affecting 
growth and development within the jurisdiction of the City of Independence; and  
 

WHEREAS, this Comprehensive Plan may from time to time be amended; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Independence City Council that the 
recommended Comprehensive Plan amendment is hereby adopted as a part of the City of 
Independence Comprehensive Plan, subject to the approval of the Metropolitan Council: 
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
6th of September 2022, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

        

  

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT B 
(Preliminary Plat) 

 



 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-05 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE  
ZONING CODE, INCLUDING ZONING MAPS 

 
 
THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 
Section 1. The City of Independence Zoning Code be amended to rezone 46.52 acres of the 
property identified as (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009, 24-118-24-11-0012) 
from A-Agriculture to RR Rural Residential and legally described as follows: 
 

 
 
Section 2.   The City Administrator is hereby directed to amend the City of Independence 
Zoning Ordinance, including Zoning Maps, in accordance with the foregoing amendment. 
 
Section 3.  Effective date.  This ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be in full force 
and effect after its passage and publication according to law. 
  
 
 
 
 



Adopted this 6th day of September 2022. 
 
 
 
         
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
      



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-0906-04 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY PLAT  

TO BE KNOWN AS BRIDGEVINE  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Steve Bohl (Applicant) and Clifford L Otten Trust (Owner) request approval of a 
Preliminary Plat to allow a 28 lot development of the properties generally located at 2236 South 
Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009 and 24-
118-24-11-0012) (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat is further depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS the requested Preliminary Plat meets all requirements, standards, and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 19, 2022, to review 
the application for the Rezoning and Preliminary Plat, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  



 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
Steve Bohl for a Preliminary Plat to allow the subdivision of the property per the City’s 
subdivision regulations with the following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed rezoning, preliminary plat and comprehensive plan amendment meet all 

applicable conditions, criteria and restrictions stated in the City of Independence 
Ordinance. 
 

2. City Councils approval of the preliminary plat is subject to approval and completion 
of the following items: 

 
a) Metropolitan Council approval of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment. 

 
b) Review and adoption of an ordinance amendment to include planned unit 

developments as a conditional use in the RR-Rural Residential zoning district. 
 

c) Rezoning of the property from AG-Agriculture to RR-Rural Residential. 
 

d) Review and approval of a conditional use permit approving a planned unit 
development.   

 
e) Approval of the Quad City Agreement (stipulates sewer connections through 

Medina) by the applicable cities that are a party to the agreement. 
 

f) The Applicant shall address all engineering comments made by the City’s 
Civil Engineer, Andrew Budde, dated August 10, 2022, pertaining to 
engineering comments. 

 
g) The Applicant shall address all engineering comments made by the City’s 

Water Resource Engineer, Shane Nelson, dated June 2, 2022, pertaining to 
water resources. 
 

h) The Applicant shall make all revisions requested in the staff report, Planning 
Commission and City Council. 

 
i) The Applicant shall prepare a restrictive and protective easement over and 

across the area generally described as the “ravine” to the satisfaction of the 
City.   

 
j) The proposed PUD will include provisions and restrictions relating to tree 

removal on all riparian lots within the proposed subdivision.  The final 
language will be drafted and considered at the time of final plat. 

 
k) The Applicant shall receive approval and comply with all applicable 

regulations and conditions prescribed by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Organization. 

 



 

l) The Applicant shall receive the approval of the Department of Natural 
Resources. 

 
m) The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 

development. 
 

n) The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the 
development agreement for all improvements associated with this 
development. 

 
o) The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of the HOA agreement and 

covenants, including information related to the maintenance plantings and 
storm water easements. 

 
p) The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other 

regulatory agency approval and permits prior to construction. 
 

3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the 
comprehensive plan amendment, subdivision, rezoning, ordinance amendment and 
conditional use permit and preliminary plat and general plan. 
 

4. The Applicant shall submit the final plat to the City within ninety (90) days of the 
City Council approval of the Preliminary Plat. 

 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
6th of September 2022, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 
        

  

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
(Preliminary Plat) 

 



BridgeVine 
Dock and Outlot Use 
 
Proposed “Option B” 
 
August 5, 2022 
 
History and Amenity: 
 
The Otten property has long owned a portion of shoreline including the small strip of land currently used 
for the lift station to serve the adjoining neighbors and for future subdivision of the property. There is 
history and information about the previous Maple Street and the intent to share that use by an 
easement that benefits the property owners. 
 
The use of the lakeshore is an amenity for BridgeVine. Our proposal is passive, a significant 
neighborhood amenity, and will be managed similar to other neighborhoods we have done before. We 
anticipate this is more of an opportunity for the off-lake owners to occasionally take a boat ride on the 
lake. 
 
1 pontoon boat use only: 
 
We have changed the use of the dock from 2-3 boats to only allow dock use for the 1 pontoon boat.  
 
Effectively, the use of the dock is based on the number of boats - not the number of neighbors. Only so 
many people can be on the boat at any specific time. 
 
The impact to boat traffic on Lake Independence is extremely nominal and similar to a 1 boat dock. 
Compared to the access from Baker Park, this will not create any impact to boat traffic on the lake. 
  
Our intent is to offer access to the lakeshore with a passive use including no boat launching, pontoon 
boat docking, and HOA restrictions that keep the use reasonable to not disturb the adjoining neighbor 
and keep the outlot well landscaped and maintained.  
 
Landscaping: 
 
There currently is a grove of trees separating our proposed outlot and Becker’s home. Our landscape 
plan for the outlot will include tree buffers by transplanting arborvitaes and other trees in between 
property lines and some along the pathway down to the outlot. It is very common to have a passive 
neighborhood trail within a neighborhood. This trail is completely within our property boundaries. 
 
Location: 
 
We have moved the trail and outlot to a new location for the least impact to the neighbor. This new 
location is better than between the two houses “Outlot E.” With the recent approval for new 
construction, Cree’s property on the west side of the outlot E, and the location of the Becker’s dock on 
the very west corner of their property adjoining Outlot E, this is a significant improvement for all 
considered. Our dock will be over 200’ away from the Becker’s dock. This is a much improved location.  
 



The new trail location is only for pedestrians, bikes, or maybe a golf cart. We will keep the fence 
installed so that no pedestrian access (or crossover of property boundaries) will be onto Maple Street. 
 
Limited Access to the adjoining easement - old Maple Street: 
 
One of the most significant improvements to this proposal is to minimize the use of the currently 
allowed easement on the old Maple Street. Today, we have use of the easement along Maple Street for 
access. We will be eliminating traffic along the driveway except for city required access to the lift station 
and emergency use. 
 
By moving the trail to in between lots 1 and 2 will give the perception that the trail is specifically for the 
BridgeVine neighbors and will posted accordingly. By moving the trail to this location, it will eliminate 
possible visitors vs a trail along South Lakeshore Dr. This will allow for a strict posting “No Trespassing” 
along the Maple Street Road.  
 
There is a fence line on our property along Maple Street and we will keep the fence in that location. We 
will keep the trail on “our side” of the fence and landscape along the open area. We will repair the 
runoff swale to Improve water quality and meander the path between the trees. 
 
General Use Limitations: 

• BridgeVine neighbors and guests only 
• Only use of the pontoon boat 
• Must be trained and 25 years old to drive the boat 
• Reservation for boat time will be through the HOA 
• Noise restrictions 
• Cleanliness 
• Hours from 7:00AM - 10:00PM during summer hours 
• Violations will be subject to future use of boat and dock 
• Boat will be stored off-site during off season 

 
This proposed plan offers a significant benefit over the current conditions with limited impact to 
neighbors and Lake Independence. This brings a benefit to the neighborhood to enjoy a natural amenity 
with a passive use.  
 
 









PARCEL 3

PARCEL 3

PA
R

C
EL

 3

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY SURVEYED
(Per Schedule A of the herein referenced Title Commitment)

The Land is described as follows:

Parcel 1: The West 525 feet of the East 657 feet of Government Lot 1 except the South 246 feet of the East 444 feet thereof; That part of Government Lot 1 lying West of the East 657 feet thereof and
South of Fred W. Anderson's Addition, all in Section 24, Township 118, Range 24, free and clear of all dedications of streets, roads, alleys and public use of property contained in the plat of Perkinsville,
Hennepin County, Minnesota.

Parcel 2: Lots 13 to 25 inclusive, Fred W. Anderson's Addition, Hennepin County, Minnesota.

Parcel 3: Lot 4, Fred W. Anderson's Addition, except the East 2.00 feet, as measured at right angles to the East line thereof, free and clear of all dedications of streets, roads, alleys and public use of
property contained in the plat of Perkinsville, Hennepin County, Minnesota.

That part of vacated Maple Street, dedicated in the plat of "Fred W. Anderson's Addition" lying southerly of the centerline of said Maple Street, and between the northerly extension across it of the westerly
line of Lot 16, said plat, and the southerly extension across it of the centerline of Lake Street, said plat; That part of vacated Maple Street, dedicated in the plat of "Fred W. Anderson's Addition" lying
southerly of the centerline of said Maple Street, and between the southerly extension across of it of the centerline of Lake Street, as dedicated in said plat, and the northerly extension across it of the easterly
line of Lot 25, said plat; That part of vacated Maple Street, dedicated in the plat of "Fred W. Anderson's Addition" lying northerly of the centerline of said Maple Street, and between the southerly
extensions across it of the centerline of Lake Street, as dedicated in said plat, and westerly line of the East 2.00 feet of Lot 4, as measured of right angles to the East line thereof, said plat; That part of
vacated Lake Street, dedicated in the plat of "Fred W. Anderson's Addition" lying easterly of the centerline of said Lake Street, as dedicated in said plat.

(All of the above property is Torrens)

AND

Lot Twenty-six (26) in Fred W. Anderson's Addition, Hennepin County, Minnesota, according to the plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the Register of Deeds in and for said county.

(Abstract)

ALTA/NSPS OPTIONAL TABLE A NOTES
(The following items reference Table A optional survey responsibilities and specifications)

2) Site Address: 2236 South Lake Shore Dr. Independence, MN 55359

3) Flood Zone Information: This property appears to lie in Zone X (area determined to be outside of the 0.2% annual chance floodplain) and Zone AE (Areas subject to inundation by
the 1-percent-annual-chance flood event determined by detailed methods. Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) are shown. Mandatory flood insurance purchase requirements and
floodplain management standards apply.) per Flood Insurance Rate Map, Community Panel No. 27053C0144F , effective date of 11/4/2016.

4) Parcel Area Information: Gross Area: 2,070,703 ± s.f. ~ 47.54 ± acres  (area to Ordinary High Water line  ±)
R/W Area: 44,421 s.f. ~  1.02  acres (includes area in street easement)
Net Area: 2,026,282 s.f. ~ 46.52 acres.
*We do not affirmatively insure the quantity of acreage set forth in the description

5) Benchmark: Elevations are based on MN/DNR Lake Independence Benchmark.  The benchmark is a brass disc in Left Upstream abutment of Independence Road bridge over outlet
at SW corner of lake, which has an elevation of: 961.46 feet (NGVD 29).

6) Zoning Information: The current Zoning for the subject property is AG (Agricultural) per the City of Independence's zoning map dated February 2019.  The setback, height, and
floor space area restrictions for said zoning designation are as follows:

Principal Structure Setbacks -  Front yard: 85 feet from centerline of road or 52 feet from right of way for corner lot
                 Side: 30 feet
                Rear: 40 feet
                 Lake: 100 feet (From Ordinary High Water Line)
                 

Lake Independence Shoreland Overlay District
Height: 35 feet
Hardcover: 25 percent of lot area
Lake: 100 feet (From Ordinary High Water Line)
Street(s): 85 feet from centerline or 50 feet from right of way, whichever is greater

Please note that the zoning information shown hereon may have been amended through a city process. We recommend that a zoning letter be obtained from the Zoning
Administrator for the current restrictions for this site.  All setback information and hardcover data for planning and design must be verified by all parties involved in the design
and planning process.

We have not received the current zoning classification and building setback requirements from the insurer.

11) Utilities: We have shown the location of utilities to the best of our ability based on observed evidence together with evidence from the following sources: plans obtained from utility
companies, plans provided by client, markings by utility companies and other appropriate sources.  We have used this information to develop a view of the underground utilities for
this site.  However, lacking excavation, the exact location of underground features cannot be accurately, completely and reliably depicted.  Where additional or more detailed
information is required, the client is advised that excavation may be necessary. Also, please note that seasonal conditions may inhibit our ability to visibly observe all the utilities
located on the subject property. A Gopher State One Call was submitted for this survey. Please reference Ticket No. 212811840 for a list of utility operators in this area.

18)  Wetland Delineation: A wetland delineation was not performed at the time of this certification.

SURVEY REPORT

This map and report was prepared with the benefit of a Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Old Republic Title Insurance Company, File No. PRE238635, dated August 23, 2021.

1) We note the following with regards to Schedule B of the herein referenced Title Commitment:
a) Item no.'s 1-9, & 16 are not survey related
b) Item no. 10 -  The following Recital(s) presently appear(s) on the Certificate of  Title and will be carried forward to any new Certificate: Subject to the easement held by the

Northern States Power Company for a right to maintain an electric transmission line over the said land, which easement, and the rights incident thereto, is more fully 
described in the answer filed in Torrens Case No. 5716, by the said Northern States Power Company,which is hereby referred to and hereby made a part hereof  for the
purpose of fully described the said easement; (as to Parcel 1). Shown Hereon, page 2.

c) Item no. 11 - Northern States Power Company release recorded October 2, 1984 as Document No. 1604217 to release part of the easement in recital above.
 Shown Hereon, page 2.

d) Item no. 12 - There is a perpetual easement for street, utility and drainage purposes over the subject property. All described Easement recorded as Document Nos. 2258789
(T) and 5902472 (A). Shown Hereon, page 2.

e) Item no. 13 - Terms and conditions of  Resolution No. 95-0523-02 Order of  Vacation of  City Street (Revised & Corrected Description Document) recorded as Document No.
2649540 (T) and 6474033 (A). Said documents vacates that part of  Maple Street from the westerly border of  Lot 11 and the westerly border of  Lot 16 east to the end of  Maple
Street and all of Lake Street, Section 24, Township 118, Range 24, "Fred W. Anderson's Addition, Hennepin County, Minnesota. Shown Hereon, page 2.

f) Item no. 14 - Terms and conditions of Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Maintenance Agreement for a Private Driveway recorded as Document No.
6441204.  Shown Hereon, page 2.

g) Item no. 14 - Riparian rights are not insured by this policy. Does not apply to subject property

2) Observations/Comments noted hereon per field survey such as (but not limited to): access, occupation, and easements and/or servitudes:
a) We have shown the right-of-way of South Lake Shore Drive across the west part of the site as shown on the plat of FRED W. ANDERSON'S ADDITION. .
b) There is a discrepancy in the easement centerline description for documents no. 2649540 and 6474033.  There are 2 curve calls in the description, the first is described as

tangent to the initial line call.  The second curve is described as a reverse curve from the first curve and is supposed to intersect a line 1 foot south of  the south line of  the NE
1/4, which is not possible with the curve data listed in the description.  We adjusted the reverse curve to be non-tangential and held the line call 1 foot south of  said south line.
This entire portion of the easement falls outside of the subject property boundary and does not affect the subject property.

V
I
C
I
N
I
T
Y

M
A
P

N
O

S
C
A
L
E

SURVEY LEGEND

X
X

WB

SR

R

GN

N
E

ENI
G

E

D
E

S
I

E

NN

SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.
150 SOUTH BROADWAY  WAYZATA, MN. 55391  (952) 476-6000

S US

S
Y

R

S

O

ER

EVR

P L A

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY
PREPARED FOR:

BOHLAND HOMES

NO. BY DATE REVISIONFIELD CREW
DM, AK, DR, ABE

DRAWN
CMT

CHECKED
DLS

DATE
11/1/2021

USE (INCLUDING COPYING, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR
CONVEYANCE OF INFORMATION) OF THIS PRODUCT IS

STRICTLY PROHIBITED WITHOUT SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.'s
EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION.   USE WITHOUT SAID
AUTHORIZATION CONSTITUTES AN ILLEGITIMATE USE AND
SHALL THEREBY INDEMNIFY SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC. OF

ALL RESPONSIBILITY.  SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.  RESERVES
THE RIGHT TO HOLD ANY ILLEGITIMATE USER OR PARTY

LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGES OR LOSSES
RESULTING FROM ILLEGITIMATE USE.

To: Bohland Homes, Clifford L. Otten, and Old RepublicTitle Insurance Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail
Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 1 - 6a, 7a, 8, 11b, 14, 16
and 17 of Table A thereof. The field work was completed on November 5, 2021.

Date of Plat or Map: _11/23/2021__

________________________________________________________
Daniel L. Schmidt, PLS                    Minnesota License No. 26147

WWW.SATHRE.COM

Hennepin County
FILE NO.

3

3568-034

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

TWP:118-RGE.24-SEC.24

10

11

12

14

13

1

Bearings are based on the Hennepin County
Coordinate System (NAD 83 - 1986 adj.)

N O R T H

0

SCALE IN FEET

30 15 15 30 60

DETAIL B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 35± FEETOF SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LEVEL - 956.8 FEET (NGVD29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER LOCATED OCTOBER 12, 2021.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND IP 12755 2.55'W OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND IP 3/4" LEAN N 2.09'E OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND PK NAIL 2.53'W., 15.84'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND IP 3/4" SOLID 0.92'W.,12.58'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND IP 1/2" 1.08'W. OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE STREET PER PLAT OF FRED W. ANDERSON ADDITION, VACATED PER DOC. NO.S 6437120 & 6484033

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE STREET PER PLAT OF FRED W. ANDERSON ADDITION, VACATED PER DOC. NO.S 6437120 & 6484033

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT PER DOC. NO. 6441204

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH RIM=961.2 INV=952.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT STA RIM=962.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH RIM=960.5 INV=953.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
|

AutoCAD SHX Text
>

AutoCAD SHX Text
>>

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CONIFEROUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE DECIDUOUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN TILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DT

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLARED END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IRON MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKOUT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWEST OPENING ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FOUNDATION ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIEZOMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CONIFEROUS REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE DECIDUOUS REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL W/ ALUMINUM DISC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BUFFER SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPT. HOOK UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONITORING WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SATELLITE DISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SPIGOT



LAKE
INDEPENDENCE

SOUTH LAKE SHORE DR

PE
R

K
IN

SV
IL

LE
 R

O
A

D

12

12 12

12

10

13

13

14

11

PA
R

C
EL

   
 1

PA
R

C
EL

   
 2

PARCEL    3

Bearings are based on the Hennepin County
Coordinate System (NAD 83 - 1986 adj.)

N
O

R
T

H

Fe
nc

e
Li

ne

Bo
un

da
ry

Li
ne

Fence ties are shown on the
side of the boundary line that
the fence is located on.

0

SCALE IN FEET

80 40 40 80 160

SR

R

GN

N
E

ENI
G

E

D
E

S
I

E

NN

SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.
150 SOUTH BROADWAY  WAYZATA, MN. 55391  (952) 476-6000

S US

S
Y

R

S

O

ER

EVR

P L A

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY
PREPARED FOR:

BOHLAND HOMES

NO. BY DATE REVISIONFIELD CREW
DM, AK, DR, ABE

DRAWN
CMT

CHECKED
DLS

DATE
11/1/2021

USE (INCLUDING COPYING, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR
CONVEYANCE OF INFORMATION) OF THIS PRODUCT IS

STRICTLY PROHIBITED WITHOUT SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.'s
EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION.   USE WITHOUT SAID
AUTHORIZATION CONSTITUTES AN ILLEGITIMATE USE AND
SHALL THEREBY INDEMNIFY SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC. OF

ALL RESPONSIBILITY.  SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.  RESERVES
THE RIGHT TO HOLD ANY ILLEGITIMATE USER OR PARTY

LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGES OR LOSSES
RESULTING FROM ILLEGITIMATE USE.

To: Bohland Homes, Clifford L. Otten, and Old RepublicTitle Insurance Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail
Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 1 - 6a, 7a, 8, 11b, 14, 16
and 17 of Table A thereof. The field work was completed on November 5, 2021.

Date of Plat or Map: _11/23/2021__

________________________________________________________
Daniel L. Schmidt, PLS                    Minnesota License No. 26147

WWW.SATHRE.COM

Hennepin County
FILE NO.

3

3568-034

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

TWP:118-RGE.24-SEC.24

SURVEY LEGEND

X
X

WB

2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LEVEL - 956.8 FEET (NGVD29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER LOCATED OCTOBER 12, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°30'23"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
F R E D      W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A N D E R S O N' S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A D D I T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O V E R N M E N T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T    1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E C.   2 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T W P.   1 1 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
R G E.  2 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE STREET PER PLAT OF FRED W. ANDERSON ADDITION, VACATED PER DOC. NO.S 6437120 & 6484033

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT PER DOC. NO. 6441204

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN STATES POWER EASEMENT  PER DOC. NO. 1604217

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF CORN FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET, UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 5902472 & 2258789

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET, UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 5902472 & 2258789

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET, UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 5902472 & 2258789

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 720± FEETOF SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 35± FEETOF SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDINARY HIGH WATER LEVEL - 956.8 FEET (NGVD29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER LOCATED OCTOBER 12, 2021.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVER PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE STREET PER PLAT OF FRED W. ANDERSON ADDITION, VACATED PER DOC. NO.S 6437120 & 6484033

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF GOVERNMENT LOT 1, SEC. 24, TWP. 118, RGE. 24 ALSO EAST LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF  SEC. 24, TWP. 118, RGE. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE OF GOVERNMENT LOT 1, SEC. 24, TWP. 118, RGE. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF GOVERNMENT LOT 1, SEC. 24, TWP. 118, RGE. 24 ALSO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF, SEC. 24, TWP. 118, RGE. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR-VACUME RELEASE MH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FORCEMAIN LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FORCEMAIN LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FORCEMAIN LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISCREPANCY IN EASEMENT CALLS, SEE NOTE ON SHEET 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.08'W. OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.92'W.,12.58'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.09'E OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.55'W OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.53' N, 15.84' N OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.11'W.,4.68'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(90°46' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING PLAT OF FRED W. ANDERSON ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1453' PER PLAT, DISTANCE CORRECTION IN MARGIN OF PLAT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.10'E.,0.81'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.21'E.,0.01'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL A - SEE SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND CIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.19'W.,0.04'S.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.19'S. OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.14'E.,0.02'S.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL B -  SEE SHEET 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 1/4 CORNER SEC. 24,  TWP. 118, RGE. 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
4±

AutoCAD SHX Text
2±

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
|

AutoCAD SHX Text
>

AutoCAD SHX Text
>>

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CONIFEROUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE DECIDUOUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN TILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DT

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLARED END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IRON MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKOUT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWEST OPENING ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FOUNDATION ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIEZOMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CONIFEROUS REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE DECIDUOUS REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL W/ ALUMINUM DISC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BUFFER SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPT. HOOK UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONITORING WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SATELLITE DISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SPIGOT



Bearings are based on the Hennepin County
Coordinate System (NAD 83 - 1986 adj.)

N O R T H

0

SCALE IN FEET

30 15 15 30 60

SURVEY LEGEND

X
X

WB

SR

R

GN

N
E

ENI
G

E

D
E

S
I

E

NN

SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.
150 SOUTH BROADWAY  WAYZATA, MN. 55391  (952) 476-6000

S US

S
Y

R

S

O

ER

EVR

P L A

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY
PREPARED FOR:

BOHLAND HOMES

NO. BY DATE REVISIONFIELD CREW
DM, AK, DR, ABE

DRAWN
CMT

CHECKED
DLS

DATE
11/1/2021

USE (INCLUDING COPYING, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR
CONVEYANCE OF INFORMATION) OF THIS PRODUCT IS

STRICTLY PROHIBITED WITHOUT SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.'s
EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION.   USE WITHOUT SAID
AUTHORIZATION CONSTITUTES AN ILLEGITIMATE USE AND
SHALL THEREBY INDEMNIFY SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC. OF

ALL RESPONSIBILITY.  SATHRE-BERGQUIST, INC.  RESERVES
THE RIGHT TO HOLD ANY ILLEGITIMATE USER OR PARTY

LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGES OR LOSSES
RESULTING FROM ILLEGITIMATE USE.

To: Bohland Homes, Clifford L. Otten, and Old RepublicTitle Insurance Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail
Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 1 - 6a, 7a, 8, 11b, 14, 16
and 17 of Table A thereof. The field work was completed on November 5, 2021.

Date of Plat or Map: _11/23/2021__

________________________________________________________
Daniel L. Schmidt, PLS                    Minnesota License No. 26147

WWW.SATHRE.COM

Hennepin County
FILE NO.

3

3568-034

INDEPENDENCE,
MINNESOTA

TWP:118-RGE.24-SEC.24

3

DETAIL A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°30'23"

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O V E R N M E N T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T    1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E C.   2 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T W P.   1 1 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
R G E.  2 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN STATES POWER EASEMENT  PER DOC. NO. 1604217

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVER PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.11'W.,4.68'N.  OF CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(90°46' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
|

AutoCAD SHX Text
>

AutoCAD SHX Text
>>

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CONIFEROUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE DECIDUOUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN TILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DT

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLARED END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IRON MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKOUT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWEST OPENING ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FOUNDATION ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIEZOMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CONIFEROUS REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE DECIDUOUS REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL W/ ALUMINUM DISC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BUFFER SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPT. HOOK UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONITORING WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SATELLITE DISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SPIGOT












































	Vandeneinde-_Plans_V3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-PV 0.0
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-PV 1.0
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-S 1.1
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-S 1.2
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-E 1.1
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-E 1.2
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-E 1.3
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-01
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-02
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-03
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-04
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-05
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-06





